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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let's try

          3  something different. How about we open the hearing

          4  with a gavel? Some people do that. I only gavel at

          5  the end. This is a new policy now, Donna. I'll open

          6  the hearing with a gavel. We're going to start now.

          7                 Good afternoon and welcome. I'm

          8  Councilman Jim Gennaro, Chair of the City Council's

          9  Committee on Environmental Protection.

         10                 Today, we are holding a hearing on a

         11  number of issues related to the City's development

         12  of long-term control plans for combined sewer

         13  overflows or CSO's.

         14                 CSO's are sewers intended to collect

         15  stormwater runoff, sewage, and waste water in the

         16  same pipe during periods of heavy rainfall or

         17  snowmelt; however, these combined sewers often

         18  exceed their capacity, overflow and release

         19  untreated sewage and stormwater directly into our

         20  waterways. Besides receiving a comprehensive update

         21  on the status of the City's development of long-term

         22  control plans for CSO's, this Committee also hopes

         23  today to explore three additional areas:

         24                 First, we are very interested in

         25  exploring the role that best management practices or
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          2  so-called "green techniques" for managing stormwater

          3  will play in the City's efforts to control CSO's and

          4  comply with water quality standards.

          5                 Second, we also want to explore

          6  whether the City's DEP feels there is now or will be

          7  a need to modify water quality standards and/or use

          8  designations for the City's water bodies as part of

          9  controlling CSO's.

         10                 Finally, in looking at the role of

         11  the CAC's or Community Advisory Boards or Community

         12  Advisory Committees, in the development of these

         13  plans.

         14                 Making CSO's better is and has been a

         15  major City priority that has consumed tremendous

         16  amounts of effort in resources. For over 30 years

         17  now, the City working with the State, Federal and

         18  local partners has been grappling with this matter.

         19  We are currently under a third Consent Order which

         20  started in 2004 and superseded the 1992 and 1996

         21  orders. The price tag for this work runs into the

         22  billions and the time frame envisioned takes us out

         23  to 2017, at which point, the City will finally have,

         24  if everything goes as planned, a City- wide long-

         25  term control plan for managing our CSO's.
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          2                 We have reached an idea point to

          3  review this ongoing process. The next milestone, the

          4  generation of Waterbody/Watershed Facility Plans is

          5  slated for June of 2007 and that's rapidly

          6  approaching. These plans will play a critical role

          7  in determining how the City will manage CSO's and

          8  protect and sustain the water quality of our

          9  waterbodies well into the future.

         10                 Therefore, it is virtually important

         11  to pause prior to the completion and take a look at

         12  how they are taking shape. When we say taking shape,

         13  we mean the waterbody/watershed facility plans, to

         14  see how they are taking shape. Otherwise, the

         15  opportunity will have passed us by. My hope is that

         16  in the context of developing and completing long-

         17  term control plans for CSO's, the City will approach

         18  the protection of a water and sweeping and

         19  aggressive way and one that reflects that all of our

         20  ambitions for creating and sustaining a cleaner and

         21  better environment for ourselves and those to

         22  follow.

         23                 With that said, I'll recognize the

         24  first panel, but I want to recognize the fact that

         25  we have been joined by Council Member Pete Vallone,
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          2  a valued member of this Committee, Chair of our

          3  Public Safety Committee and other members presumably

          4  will be joining us during the proceeding. I'd also

          5  like to thank the Counsel to the Committee, Donna

          6  DeCostanzo, Dan Avery, Peter Washburn and all of the

          7  staff of the Committee. I just want to welcome the

          8  folks from DEP. I know that Emily is out of town.

          9  But the agency is ably represented by Steve Lawitts,

         10  a good friend, First Deputy Commissioner; Angela

         11  Licata is who has done so much with the Jamaica Bay

         12  initiative. I thank you for that, Angela and James

         13  Mueller.

         14                 Did you write this James? Okay. Who

         15  wrote this? Who wrote this? You make work for the

         16  Chairman whoever wrote this. Not a good thing. And

         17  we are joined by Ken Stewart and as I said, it is

         18  critically important that we use this opportunity to

         19  look at this now before the 2007 milestone is upon

         20  us. As I indicated, we are going to have a special

         21  focus on BMP's, on CAC's and whatever else I said.

         22  What was the other thing? And water quality

         23  standards. With that said, Donna will swear you in.

         24  You can state your name for the record and proceed

         25  with your testimony. Thank you.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please raise

          3  your right hand. In the testimony that you are about

          4  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

          5  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I do.

          7                 MS. LICATA: I do.

          8                 MR. MUELLER: I do.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Good

         11  afternoon, Chairman Gennaro and members of the

         12  Committee on Environmental Protection. I am Steven

         13  Lawitts, First Deputy Commissioner of the New York

         14  City Department of Environmental Protection. With me

         15  on my left are Angela Licata, Deputy Commissioner of

         16  the Bureau of Environmental Planning and Analysis

         17  and on my right, James Mueller, Director of Planning

         18  and Design in DEP's Bureau of Engineering, Design

         19  and Construction.

         20                 On behalf of Commissioner Lloyd, who

         21  is out of town at the moment, as we stated, I want

         22  to thank you for this opportunity to discuss DEP's

         23  program of improving the quality of water in New

         24  York Harbor by controlling combined sewer overflows

         25  (usually known by the acronym of CSO's).
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          2  Commissioner Lloyd and I view CSO control as a top

          3  priority because of its direct impact on scientific

          4  measures of water quality that are key indicators of

          5  how well we are performing our core mission.

          6                 CSO control is also a priority for

          7  DEP and this Administration because CSO's have a

          8  tangible impact on the quality of life in our City,

          9  particularly in our waterfront communities; so many

         10  of which are being reinvigorated thanks to the

         11  policies of Mayor Bloomberg and the efforts of

         12  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff. Our CSO planning effort has

         13  greatly benefited from the work of the Office of

         14  Long- Term Planning and Sustainability and the

         15  Mayor's Sustainability Advisory Board.

         16                 New York Harbor is one of New York

         17  City's most important assets. The CSO plan shows how

         18  we plan to protect that asset by building on decades

         19  of improvement in harbor water quality while

         20  balancing the need to protect and improve other

         21  parts of our infrastructure. As I think we all know,

         22  improvement in CSO control is a very long- term

         23  undertaking, involving technology-, infrastructure-,

         24  and conservation- based approaches. DEP is also

         25  actively considering the role of stormwater best
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          2  management practices in controlling CSO's. Whatever

          3  combination of methods we use, CSO control is an

          4  extremely expensive undertaking.

          5                 Fiscal prudence, including concern

          6  for water and sewer rates, requires that DEP look at

          7  its CSO goals in the context of all the other

          8  environmental and infrastructure goals that we want

          9  to fund in our capital and expense budgets. CSO's

         10  are a legacy of the type of sewers that were built

         11  in New York City until the mid- twentieth century.

         12  Without excavating several thousand miles of sewers

         13  buried under City streets, we will not completely

         14  end the source of CSO's.

         15                 However, by using the available

         16  engineering expertise, by considering the advice of

         17  the many different advisory bodies that DEP has

         18  assembled, and by making clear choices among the

         19  available options, we can continue to make New York

         20  City a more attractive place to work and live by

         21  improving the quality of the water surrounding New

         22  York City.

         23                 One key element of the City's CSO

         24  program is public participation. DEP has also had a

         25  comprehensive public participation program as part
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          2  of its CSO planning efforts and this was expanded to

          3  convene local tributary stakeholder groups comprised

          4  of Community Board members, local grassroots

          5  organizations, and individual citizens. On a broader

          6  level, in 1996, the City convened an Open Waters

          7  Citizen's Advisory Committee, (the CAC), that

          8  includes non- governmental organizations, business

          9  and real estate interests and our colleagues at

         10  other New York City and New York State agencies.

         11                 Through our public participation

         12  program, we are receiving critical input from a

         13  myriad of stakeholders. To date, we have held 14

         14  public meetings in connection with our CSO plan and

         15  we anticipate scheduling about a dozen more. Before

         16  explaining the current status of our CSO control

         17  plan and where we plan to go from here, I think it

         18  would be useful to review some basic facts about why

         19  we have CSO's and what New York City has done about

         20  them to date.

         21                 As many members know, in the older

         22  parts of New York City, as in many older cities

         23  throughout the U.S., sanitary sewage emanating from

         24  homes and businesses is collected by a single sewage

         25  system that also collects the rain water runoff from
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          2  streets, sidewalks, rooftops and parking lots. Since

          3  this type of collection system includes both

          4  rainwater and sanitary sewage, it is referred to as

          5  a combined sewer system. Until the middle of the

          6  20th century, municipalities typically built only

          7  combined sewers. Beginning in the 1960's, to the

          8  extent possible, new sewers throughout the country

          9  were more commonly built as separate sewers;

         10  meaning, the sanitary sewage and rainwater runoff

         11  ran through two entirely separate sets of pipes.

         12                 However, by the 1960s, most of New

         13  York City was already built and sewered and this

         14  reality is reflected in the fact that approximately

         15  60 percent of New York City, by geographic area, is

         16  served by combined sewers. The 40 percent of the

         17  City served by separate sewers encompasses the more

         18  recently built parts of the City, including large

         19  areas in Queens and Staten Island, and much smaller

         20  areas of Brooklyn and Bronx. Manhattan does not have

         21  any separate sewers. The first map attached to your

         22  copies of this statement and also posted on the

         23  easel to the left shows what areas of the City are

         24  served by combined sewers and what areas are served

         25  by separate storm and sanitary sewers. On the map,
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          2  the combined sewer areas are in blue and the

          3  separate sewer areas are in green.

          4                 One important rationale for combined

          5  sewers was cost. It is less expensive to build a

          6  single collection system for both rainwater and

          7  sanitary sewage. It appears that cost considerations

          8  at the time of construction outweighed concerns

          9  about the effect on water quality of combined

         10  sewers. Furthermore, since cost directly influences

         11  the size of a sewer, combined sewers, although

         12  large, were not built with enough capacity to carry

         13  all the rainwater that might fall in a given area

         14  during the worst conceivable rainstorm.

         15                 Instead, combined sewers, and the

         16  waste water treatment plants to which the sewers

         17  flow, were designed with certain limits in mind and

         18  at times, the amount of rainwater falling exceeds

         19  those design limits. At present, new sewers are

         20  designed to carry all the rainwater and sanitary

         21  flow generated by a five- year storm. A five- year

         22  storm is simply a statistical construct based on

         23  rainfall data. In New York City, a five- year storm

         24  is one that delivers approximately 1.7 inches an

         25  hour of rainfall.
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          2                 Combined sewers have regulator

          3  chambers built inside them so that when the capacity

          4  is exceeded, the regulator directs excess flow

          5  through an outfall into a nearby body of water.

          6  Without these outfalls, the excess flow would cause

          7  widespread backups and flood out sewage treatment

          8  plants. That excess flow is what we refer to as a

          9  Combined Sewer Overflow or CSO.

         10                 In dry weather, all of the City's

         11  approximately 1.2 billion gallons of sanitary

         12  wastewater, per day, is treated at our 14 treatment

         13  plants. In wet weather, the treatment plants are

         14  designed to accept up to twice their dry weather

         15  flow. In wet weather, when the combined flow in the

         16  sewers exceeds the treatment plant's capacity, the

         17  regulator will discharge the excess flow, including

         18  part of the sanitary flow, into the waterways. In

         19  addition, road salt, motor oil, fuel and litter that

         20  is on City streets and sidewalks is also washed into

         21  combined sewers and some of that road runoff and

         22  litter is also discharged into the harbor. Although

         23  CSO's are principally rainwater, the sanitary

         24  portion of the flow, in particular, can have an

         25  impact on water quality.
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          2                 DEP's harbor sampling data shows that

          3  the water quality degradation caused by CSO's is not

          4  significant in the open waters of New York Harbor,

          5  except after periods of prolonged or heavy rainfall.

          6  The reason for that is simply volume. The CSO

          7  outfalls discharging into the Harbor's open waters

          8  tend to be small, as compared with the size of the

          9  open areas of the Harbor, so the dilution factor

         10  limits the water quality impairment. However, New

         11  York Harbor contains many smaller, confined or

         12  somewhat stagnant channels, bays and tributaries;

         13  Newtown Creek and Flushing Bay for example. In many

         14  of the Harbor tributaries the outfalls are large,

         15  the tributaries are small, and the water quality

         16  impact of the CSO's is more significant.

         17                 New York City's first CSO control

         18  facility at Spring Creek, was conceived in the

         19  1950's and designed and built by the early 1970's.

         20  The Spring Creek plant was also one of the first CSO

         21  control facilities in the nation. In 1972, the Clean

         22  Water Act was passed and municipal engineers in New

         23  York City and elsewhere focused more on building

         24  sewers and wastewater treatment plants to handle dry

         25  weather flow. The Clean Water Act also began an
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          2  unprecedented phase of Federal investment in

          3  pollution control that continued until 1986, when

          4  the Federal Government stopped making large- scale

          5  federal grants for wastewater treatment.

          6                 The second map attached to my

          7  statement shows that water quality improved

          8  significantly throughout New York Harbor after the

          9  introduction of the Clean Water Act, as measured by

         10  improved dissolved oxygen levels. On these, all the

         11  dissolved oxygen level map is on the left. This

         12  compares dissolved oxygen levels in 1970 to those in

         13  the year 2000 with the blue being high levels of

         14  dissolved oxygen. And the higher level dissolved

         15  oxygen, the better. While we don't show it here, the

         16  levels for 2005 of dissolved oxygen are even better

         17  especially along the Hudson River.

         18                 Generally speaking, the higher levels

         19  of dissolved oxygen and lower levels of pathogens

         20  indicate cleaner and healthier water bodies. The map

         21  on the right indicates the reduced pathogen levels

         22  occurring between 1970 and 2000. And again, blue is

         23  used on the pathogen map to indicate lower levels of

         24  coliform in the Harbor. As the map shows between

         25  1970 and 2000, the total area of the Harbor that is
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          2  above 4.8 milligrams of dissolved oxygen per liter

          3  has risen. At the same time, the total area that is

          4  below 2.3 milligrams has substantially decreased.

          5                 The third map attached shows coliform

          6  bacteria, a marker organism that is used as an

          7  indicator of sanitary waste. As that map shows, the

          8  level of coliform bacteria has also declined between

          9  1970 and 2000. The improvements in dissolved oxygen

         10  and pathogen control mean that New York Harbor can

         11  support a more abundant and diverse ecosystem.

         12                 Part of the reason for improvement in

         13  water quality is that two new sewage treatment

         14  plants came on line. The Red Hook plant in the

         15  Brooklyn Navy Yard and the North River plant in West

         16  Harlem. But another part of the change was that DEP

         17  engineers had begun focusing on the challenge of

         18  controlling CSO's. In 1980, DEP's treatment system

         19  only captured approximately 30 percent of the

         20  combined flow of sanitary wastewater and rainwater.

         21  By 2000, as a result of new treatment plants, sewer

         22  cleaning, improvements to regulators, and

         23  improvements to the flow control at existing plants,

         24  DEP captured 70 percent of the combined flow and

         25  only 30 percent of the flow went untreated. As a
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          2  result of these efforts, public beaches are rarely

          3  closed as a result of wet weather CSO discharges.

          4                 One of the first CSO control

          5  facilities built by DEP was a detention tank to

          6  reduce the amount of CSO's flowing into Spring

          7  Creek, a tributary of Jamaica Bay. In the late

          8  1990's, the City began building two additional

          9  detention tanks to reduce the amount of CSO's being

         10  discharged into New York Harbor. These detention

         11  tanks are examples of one type of CSO control that

         12  DEP has used at different places around the Harbor.

         13  One of the new tanks, costing approximately $300

         14  million, is underneath Flushing Meadow Park and will

         15  capture about 800 million gallons per year of

         16  combined sewage that would otherwise flow into

         17  Flushing Creek and then Flushing Bay after a

         18  rainstorm.

         19                 The other tank, costing approximately

         20  $300 million, is in Canarsie and will capture 1.3

         21  billion gallons per year of combined sewage that

         22  would otherwise flow into Paedergat Basin, another

         23  tributary of Jamaica Bay. The Flushing Bay tank is

         24  virtually complete and scheduled to go online next

         25  month. The Paedergat Basin tank is currently under
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          2  construction and is scheduled to be completed in

          3  2011.

          4                 Until 2005, DEP and its regulators

          5  had in place a Consent Order in which DEP had agreed

          6  to build six more detention tanks at various places

          7  in New York Harbor: Alley Creek, Newtown Creek, the

          8  Hutchinson River, Westchester Creek, the Bronx River

          9  and Fresh Creek. However, by 2005 DEP had concluded

         10  that the enormous cost of these detention tanks far

         11  outweighed the localized water quality improvement

         12  afforded by the tanks. Rather than spend its entire

         13  CSO budget on six more capital intensive detention

         14  tanks that had only localized benefits, DEP created

         15  a new CSO control plan that de- emphasized detention

         16  tanks in favor of other control strategies.

         17                 Although this new CSO control plan is

         18  still very costly, it provides more extensive water

         19  quality benefits than could be achieved by building

         20  six more tanks. In January 2005, DEP's new CSO

         21  control plan was memorialized in a Consent Order

         22  with the State of New York. That 2005 Consent Order

         23  is the document that now governs our CSO program.

         24                 The 2005 order divides New York

         25  Harbor into 18 waterbodies, contains over 200
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          2  milestones for planning, design and construction of

          3  the City's CSO facilities, and requires over 30

          4  capital projects to be constructed. In that 2005

          5  Consent Order, DEP committed to the daunting task of

          6  creating waterbody/watershed plans for each of them

          7  by June 2007. The preparation of those waterbody

          8  plans is being directed by Jim Mueller. The process

          9  has been underway for over a year, although the

         10  plans are, in many cases, building on an extensive

         11  body of data and analysis assembled by DEP and its

         12  consultants over many years.

         13                 Although the waterbody plans are not

         14  complete, the planning process is far enough along

         15  that we can tentatively characterize what DEP

         16  believes are the critical features of the plans. In

         17  the interests of time, my testimony does not review

         18  each of the 18 waterbody plans. Instead, I focus on

         19  the principal basins and the principal control

         20  strategies that DEP will be employing at various

         21  basins.

         22                 Paedergat Basin, Spring Creek,

         23  Flushing Creek and Alley Creek are four of the 18

         24  waterbodies mentioned in the 2005 order. At these

         25  four waterbodies, DEP is building or upgrading some
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          2  type of detention facility at a total cost of

          3  approximately $850 million. As I explained earlier,

          4  these detention tanks are proven but very expensive

          5  method to provide significant water quality

          6  benefits, but only in a relatively isolated area.

          7                 For instance, when the Paedergat

          8  Basin tank begins operation in 2011, it will

          9  dramatically improve the quality of water in that

         10  basin and the change will be noticeable both to the

         11  public at large and to water quality professionals

         12  measuring such water quality criteria as dissolved

         13  oxygen. However, outside of Paedergat Basin, in the

         14  open waters of Jamaica Bay, the water quality impact

         15  is not significant. The same is true at Flushing

         16  Creek. Although the CSO tank in Flushing Meadow Park

         17  will dramatically improve Flushing Creek, it has a

         18  much lesser impact on the open waters of Flushing

         19  Bay.

         20                 Coney Island Creek flows into

         21  Gravesend Bay, part of the outer New York Harbor

         22  area. The Gowanus Canal is tributary to the inner

         23  part of New York Harbor. At both of these

         24  waterbodies, DEP operates pumping stations that pump

         25  all dry weather flow to a nearby sewage treatment
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          2  plant, as well as some of the combined flow during

          3  wet weather. By increasing the capacity of the

          4  pumping stations, DEP can reduce the amount of CSO

          5  that flows into these waterways.

          6                 At Coney Island Creek, the pumping

          7  station will increase from 30 million gallons per

          8  day to 80 gallons per day at a cost of $155 million.

          9  At the Gowanus Canal, the pumping station capacity

         10  will increase from approximately 20 million gallons

         11  per day to approximately 30 million gallons per day

         12  at a cost of $76 million. At the Gowanus Canal, DEP

         13  is also upgrading the Flushing Tunnel as well as re-

         14  routing some local sewers so that they do not

         15  discharge to the Canal.

         16                 The Bronx River is one of the great

         17  natural resources of Bronx County. Originating in

         18  Westchester County, it is the only tributary that

         19  still has significant freshwater flow. Water quality

         20  modeling and analysis has shown that much of the

         21  water quality problem in the Bronx River is caused

         22  by the raw discharge of sanitary sewage from

         23  Westchester County communities. DEP's ability to

         24  improve the Bronx River is therefore connected to

         25  the commitment of these communities to controlling
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          2  their improper discharges. The extent of that

          3  commitment is, as yet, uncertain.

          4                 In the meantime, DEP is committed to

          5  a $20 million plan for controlling floatables or

          6  litter that washes off Bronx streets and into three

          7  of the DEP outfalls that discharge into the Bronx

          8  River. DEP is also conducting a coordinated Bronx

          9  River sampling program, in conjunction with

         10  Westchester County to identify methods to further

         11  improve water quality.

         12                 At Newtown Creek, Westchester Creek

         13  and Hutchinson River, there are a variety of options

         14  that DEP has considered for controlling CSO's.

         15  Detention tanks remain one of the options at all of

         16  these water bodies. However, in each case, previous

         17  analysis showed a modest water quality benefit when

         18  compared with the cost. Between now and June 2007,

         19  DEP's task with respect to these waterbodies is to

         20  select from a menu of CSO control techniques and

         21  choose those measures that will make the greatest

         22  improvement possible at a reasonable cost.

         23                 Besides detention tanks, the other

         24  measures we will look at include: In stream

         25  aeration; improvements to the regulator structures

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that control wet weather discharge at each of the

          3  outfalls; in- line storage which takes advantage of

          4  large, shallow- sloped sewers to retain storm flow;

          5  and throttling facilities which can reduce CSO's by

          6  maximizing the amount of flow that can be received

          7  at the wastewater treatment plants.

          8                 Jamaica Bay deserves special mention

          9  in my testimony, both because of its size and

         10  complexity and because of Local Law 71, sponsored by

         11  Chairman Gennaro. Local Law 71 created an

         12  independent requirement that DEP create a watershed

         13  plan for Jamaica Bay. This legislation has created

         14  an opportunity to build upon our experience in the

         15  implementation of best management practices. That

         16  experience may be applicable to waterbodies

         17  throughout the City. What Local Law 71 has in common

         18  with the 2005 Consent Order is a concern for

         19  mitigating the impact of CSO's on Jamaica Bay.

         20                 In fact, of the 18 waterbodies

         21  mentioned in the 2005 order, seven are part of

         22  Jamaica Bay. Most of the CSO control options

         23  mentioned in my testimony will be used to limit the

         24  impact of CSO's on Jamaica Bay: Detention tanks; in-

         25  line storage; regulator improvements; expansion of
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          2  capacity at the nearby treatment plants; floatables

          3  control; sewer separation; and in- stream aeration.

          4  All of these control strategies are what are usually

          5  referred to as end- of- the- pipe solutions meaning

          6  that they are focused on capturing CSO's, treating

          7  CSO's, or mitigating the water quality impact of

          8  CSO's.

          9                 These strategies are clearly the key

         10  tools that DEP is analyzing to reduce the impact of

         11  CSO's on Jamaica Bay and elsewhere in New York

         12  Harbor. But they are not the only tools available to

         13  address CSO's and Local Law 71 recognized that by

         14  directing DEP to study a variety of methods to

         15  reduce the amount of stormwater runoff into Jamaica

         16  Bay. Encouraged by Local Law 71 and by our own

         17  experience with source control strategies such as

         18  Bluebelts, DEP is examining the feasibility and

         19  effectiveness of a long list of source control

         20  strategies that may be used in the Jamaica Bay

         21  watershed as well as many other places in the City.

         22                 Some of these strategies are used

         23  within a property line. For example, low impact

         24  development practices such as planted roofs,

         25  detention basins, rain barrels, and water recycling
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          2  are all ways to reduce the amount of storm and

          3  sanitary runoff leaving a particular property and

          4  entering our system. Source control strategies that

          5  may be employed off- site may include drainage

          6  swales in certain streets and local collection of

          7  stormwater for subsurface infiltration. It is very

          8  important to emphasize here that although the

          9  toolbox for source control strategies is plentiful,

         10  and many of these strategies are currently used

         11  elsewhere throughout the country, many of these

         12  tools have limited value for large scale CSO

         13  mitigation in an urban environment. Therefore, our

         14  CSO control strategies will rely most heavily on the

         15  proven end- of- pipe practices described throughout

         16  this statement. However, DEP will continue to

         17  evaluate where and how we can use source control

         18  strategies throughout New York City to reduce

         19  stormwater flow and improve water quality.

         20                 As my testimony has shown, our CSO

         21  control plan is aggressive, far- reaching and long-

         22  term. Even as we develop infrastructure based

         23  solutions that are critical to meeting our

         24  obligations under the 2005 order, we will continue

         25  to evaluate source control options and solutions in
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          2  partnership with the Mayor's Office, with our

          3  colleagues at other City agencies, with the Council

          4  and with the environmental community. That concludes

          5  my prepared remarks. On behalf of Commissioner

          6  Lloyd, again thank you for this opportunity to

          7  present testimony. We will be happy to answer any

          8  questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         10  Deputy Commissioner Lawitts. I appreciate your

         11  comprehensive statement. We're happy to be joined by

         12  Council Member Lanza from Staten Island, a value

         13  member of this Committee. Thank you. Thank you,

         14  Andrew. I have a series of questions that I want to

         15  get to. You state that many source controls "have a

         16  limited value for large scale CSO mitigation in

         17  urban environment." If you could please give us a

         18  little more to explain the basis of that conclusion.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I think

         20  I alluded to it my testimony. We've done extensive

         21  modeling of water quality as well as testing. And it

         22  is primarily through the testing and the water

         23  quality modeling that we've determined that some of

         24  the practices like detention tanks will have

         25  benefits in local areas as I alluded to earlier in
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          2  Paedergat basin for example. Tanks under

          3  construction are expected to show significant

          4  improvement in the quality within the basin, but as

          5  you get towards the Outer Bay, the Harbor area, the

          6  effects on water quality out there become

          7  dissipated.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think just

          9  maybe you might be giving me a good answer to the

         10  question I don't think I asked which was talking

         11  about source control in the best management

         12  practices. It is the so called green techniques to

         13  reduce the source and certainly we want to focus as

         14  much as we possibly can, as much it makes sense to

         15  focus on them here and it is important for us to

         16  know what level analysis, what kind of resources

         17  have been directed to identifying and testifying

         18  these source control methods.

         19                 Because we all fear that if we don't

         20  do everything we possibly can, both with the end-

         21  of- pipe solutions and source control, that's what

         22  gets us down the path of either changing water

         23  quality standards and other things where we

         24  certainly don't want to go if there is any possible

         25  and practical way of avoiding that. What we do
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          2  understand is that some of the basins or whatever

          3  can be problematic and have limited reach or

          4  whatever. What we are really focusing in this

          5  question on these other source control categories of

          6  best management practices --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Which we want

          9  to maximize. We want to make sure that you are doing

         10  everything you can to do that.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Right.

         12  Yes, Mr. Chair. I apologize for not hearing clearly

         13  the source control portion of your question. I'd

         14  like to have Angela Licata, Deputy Commissioner for

         15  Environmental Planning and Analysis to expand.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Angela.

         17                 MS. LICATA: Let me expand on that

         18  just a little bit. We are, how should I put this

         19  best, I believe cautiously optimistic that by

         20  enhancing our current CSO program with source

         21  control strategies that we will be able to

         22  incrementally improve the amount of stormwater that

         23  we can detain from the sewer system. And in that

         24  way, potentially having an additional improvement on

         25  water quality. We are really at this point very
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          2  heavily invested in that analysis and as we

          3  mentioned in the testimony, mainly that thrust was

          4  enhanced by the Jamaica Bay planning effort. We are

          5  at this point in time combing through these

          6  potential strategies and finding those that are best

          7  suited for our urban environment and then what we

          8  will be able to do look at how many of those

          9  strategies we can implement and what type of

         10  penetration we believe that we can achieve within

         11  the City.

         12                 There are a couple of different

         13  implementation strategies that we will be looking at

         14  in that regard; whether we have those applied to new

         15  construction, whether that applies on a retro-

         16  fitted basis somehow. We will continue to look at

         17  the potential for those types of strategies as you

         18  mentioned to enhance the efforts that we are looking

         19  to make as part of the CSO program as we described

         20  being the end- of- pipe treatment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fair enough. And

         22  your statement that you just made notwithstanding,

         23  we are still reading in your prepared statement that

         24  these types of practices have been already

         25  categorized as sort of having limited value for
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          2  large scale CSO mitigation in urban environment

          3  which concerns us. We would need to get a better

          4  sense of the level of effort that is being directed

          5  towards the examination of these practices. We

          6  certainly want to get a sense of that, more than a

          7  sense.

          8                 We really need to sort of see first

          9  hand because we on the Committee are very interested

         10  in this. We've got folks who are going to be coming

         11  to testify. People who have been participated in the

         12  CAC to make sure that every possible, practical

         13  investigatory effort is being made to identify the

         14  full host of these types of strategies; not that I'm

         15  an expert on them. What can you tell us now by way

         16  of quantifying how much in the way of resources you

         17  are dedicating towards this investigation? What is

         18  the process? With whom are you sharing this

         19  information so that we can all have that comfort

         20  level?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I think

         22  to go into this would be fairly lengthy and what I'd

         23  like to suggest, Mr. Chair, is that we sit down with

         24  you and the Committee and go through more of a

         25  description of our analytical process.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's fine. But

          3  for the purposes of this public hearing setting and

          4  the people who will be watching on Crosswalks or

          5  whatever, we would at least need right now some kind

          6  of summary of your activities to sort of probe these

          7  source control measures and how that is going to

          8  move forward. Before you answer, I just want to

          9  indicate also that we are joined by Council Member

         10  Melissa Mark- Viverito, another valued member of

         11  this Committee. It is a pleasure to have you,

         12  Melissa.

         13                 MS. LICATA: I acknowledge that the

         14  testimony indicates that these types of source

         15  controls may have a limited ability to affect the

         16  CSO problem that we are facing. But once again, we

         17  are certainly not looking to limit their

         18  application. We are at this point in the process

         19  really looking to make certain that we can identify

         20  all of the very effective strategies that are

         21  available to us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How are you

         23  doing that? Tell us how you are doing that.

         24                 MS. LICATA: I will tell you a little

         25  bit about our methodology.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Tell us a lot.

          3  It's okay.

          4                 MS. LICATA: Okay. I will describe the

          5  methodology very briefly and then I will tell you --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          7                 MS. LICATA: -- At what point that we

          8  are at currently in the process which is why I think

          9  we are a little cautious about our remarks on the

         10  record. We have developed a methodology which would

         11  identify all of the BMP's that could be implemented

         12  on development lots. For instance, those might be

         13  your planted roofs and your rain barrels and then we

         14  have looked at off site controls which may include

         15  drainage swales in certain streets, drainage swales

         16  in parking lots. It may also include looking at

         17  publicly owned lots or available vacant land where

         18  stormwater could be directed. Then where stormwater

         19  could be introduced into the ground so that it would

         20  infiltrate and not make it anywhere or by any means

         21  into one of the piped sewers that we have which

         22  would lead to a CSO.

         23                 At this point in time, we have

         24  accomplished that task. We believe that we have

         25  identified those most promising BMP's that could be
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          2  employed off site or on site at various locations

          3  throughout the City. The next step in the

          4  methodology is to determine what effect those BMP's

          5  would have where they can be located. This part is a

          6  little trickier. We have to look at the City. We

          7  have to look at the diverse areas that comprise the

          8  locations within the five boroughs and determine

          9  where you could envision a drainage swale, for

         10  instance, which areas might be suitable for planted

         11  roofs. So we look maybe in a commercial area with

         12  flat roofs, a little bit more seriously than we

         13  would look at a two- family home with a pitched

         14  roof, for instance, for a green roof design. That's

         15  the point in the process that we are at now. And we

         16  have done a lot of not simply drive- bys to try and

         17  assess that situation on the ground, but we've done

         18  a lot of field work. When you talk about resources,

         19  we have devoted quite a lot of resources.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just jump

         21  in and ask you because you talked about this on-

         22  going analysis. I'd like to get a sense when the

         23  analysis will be completed and is this something

         24  that you are doing in house or it was a subject of

         25  consulting or engineer that you employed to do this.
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          2  Tell us a little bit about that.

          3                 MS. LICATA: That effort being done

          4  both by in- house personnel that are on my staff as

          5  well as some staff members from Jim Mueller's group.

          6  And in addition to that, we are supported by

          7  engineering and scientific consultants that have

          8  been working with us on our CSO program. Namely that

          9  is O'Brien and Geer Engineering (phonetic) and

         10  Hydroqual (phonetic) who are very good, a scientific

         11  analyst with respect to water quality modeling. We

         12  have had many, many meetings. They typically last

         13  about four to five hours. We can't seem to get

         14  enough of this topic. As I said, we are anticipating

         15  completing this effort in time for our submission on

         16  the Jamaica Bay plan. That's how we have been

         17  gearing this up.

         18                 Of course, we have not limited

         19  ourselves to this BMP analysis for application only

         20  within the Jamaica Bay watershed. We would like to

         21  take whatever we learn from this experience and to

         22  apply it Citywide. That's the point in the process

         23  that we are at today and we would be happy to

         24  provide updates as they are available.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. We're
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          2  joined by Council Member Koppell, a valued member of

          3  this Committee. Thank you, Oliver for being here.

          4  And my colleagues have some questions. I just want

          5  to follow up on a little bit on what I've asked and

          6  then I will turn it over my colleagues and then come

          7  back. So Angela, following along with what we were

          8  talking about, I want to know a little bit about how

          9  the results of this analysis will be incorporated

         10  into the DEP's development of waterbody/watershed

         11  facility plans and basis specific long- term control

         12  plan. How will this analysis be incorporated into

         13  that? I didn't mean to direct the question.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We're

         15  going to switch sides now and I'm going to ask Jim

         16  Mueller to expand on that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Mueller.

         18                 MR. MUELLER: Sure, thank you. As was

         19  stated, our waterbody/watershed plans are due to the

         20  state in June of '07. That's less than a year from

         21  now. Angela, I think, summed up the analogy she is

         22  undertaking now pretty well and depending on how

         23  advanced that analysis is, will depend on what we

         24  can incorporate into the long- term control plan in

         25  June. We are willing to incorporate whatever we can
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          2  when it is available.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You answered

          4  with great candor and I appreciate that. It is not a

          5  response that sort of gives me the feeling that

          6  there is going to be a comprehensive attempt or I

          7  guess what I am looking for is for that to be a

          8  thoroughly comprehensive analysis that will be done

          9  in time for incorporation so that can be put into

         10  the 2007 milestone. Now it seems that we will be

         11  able to put in whatever we can, sort of like

         12  whatever Angela has ready will go on. But we can't

         13  put anything in that's not ready or not complete.

         14  Right? That's your statement. Which is fine, which

         15  is accurate.

         16                 I guess what I'm looking for from DEP

         17  is I need to know that this comprehensive analysis

         18  is sort of like on the critical path and something

         19  that will be done in time for incorporation in the

         20  2007. I'm looking for that pronouncement from DEP

         21  that this will be done in a comprehensive way

         22  between now and then. Usually things that DEP are

         23  very serious about, they figure out a way to get

         24  something done that is on the critical path. I don't

         25  want to put words in anyone's mouth, but it seems
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          2  that there is a recognition within DEP that this is

          3  an important thing, but perhaps not so important

          4  that we have to have it on a critical path and have

          5  it done in a comprehensive way in time for the 2007

          6  submission. If we have it done, whatever it is,

          7  that's what we will be able to incorporate. That's

          8  where I think we are falling short here or at least

          9  from my perspective. A sample of one right here.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I think

         11  part of what we're saying, Mr. Chair, is that we

         12  were going through the analysis as Angela indicated

         13  and those practices that are analyzed to have

         14  substantial beneficial effects will become part of

         15  the submission of the plan next year. Is there

         16  something that you want to add to that, Jim?

         17                 MR. MUELLER: Yes. I guess to me it

         18  seems obvious. I mean the analysis is ongoing. I

         19  think you summed it very well yourself. I can't

         20  speak to what will be available in June.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         22                 MR. MUELLER: I'm participating

         23  analytically. I'm supporting the analysis.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         25                 MR. MUELLER: I can't presume what
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          2  will be today, what will be incorporated into those

          3  long- term plans, what's proven to be feasible. My

          4  hope is that we can determine what is feasible and

          5  include that in the long- term control plans. But it

          6  remains to be seen what the analysis will show.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But it's

          8  really Angela's group that is doing the analysis on

          9  that and they are the source for what is going to be

         10  in your submission. Right?

         11                 MR. MUELLER: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So the analysis

         13  is with Angela and her group.

         14                 MR. MUELLER: And we're supporting

         15  that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We all

         18  work together.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. But

         20  everyone has what they have ownership of and it

         21  seems that Angela and her group have ownership of

         22  this particular piece of the analysis that sort of

         23  feed into your overall submission. That's fair to

         24  say. Okay. The staff has prepared a question that it

         25  is the Council's understanding that in 1999, the DEP
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          2  authorized a study to evaluate the feasibility,

          3  potential application of such stormwater BMP's which

          4  found that such BMP's could be used in certain parts

          5  of the City.

          6                 Then that follows that why are no

          7  such stormwater BMP's included in the 2005 Consent

          8  Order deemed to be feasible pursuant to the 1999

          9  study. I'll say no more. Why is no such stormwater

         10  BMP's included in the 2005 Consent Order when they

         11  were deemed to be feasible pursuant to the 1999

         12  study? Whoever wants to take a shot at that.

         13                 MR. MUELLER: Right. The '05 order we

         14  negotiated with the State over a few years and

         15  concluded in -- we've given a presentation on that

         16  to the Council. In terms of the specific stormwater

         17  BMP's, I'd have to go back and reference the

         18  specific document that you are referencing. I don't

         19  know it off the top of my head. But I know one of

         20  the problems with including things in the Consent

         21  Order, when we negotiate these things is

         22  quantification is key in terms of implementation

         23  schedules and benefits. My only guess would be that

         24  those were not available at the time to actively

         25  incorporate in the order.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: When one does a

          3  Consent Order, it is not that everything is figured

          4  out to three or four significant decimal points. It

          5  could have a thrust. It could say that it wants to

          6  go in a certain direction and the details to be

          7  provided later such as your 2007 milestone which

          8  wasn't fully articulated in the Consent Order. It's

          9  one of the things that you have to deliver. While I

         10  sort of contemplate my next question here, we have

         11  Council Members who have questions and I want to

         12  give them an opportunity. Where is the list of

         13  Council Members that have questions? I recognize

         14  Council Member Ken Stewart to be followed by Council

         15  Member Oliver Koppell. I want to recognize the

         16  presence of Council Member David Yassky from

         17  Brooklyn who has long been involved in CSO related

         18  issues.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair. I have a few questions that I would like

         21  to ask at this time. You mentioned that by the year

         22  2000, there is 70 percent of CSO captured and only

         23  30 percent that is gone on untreated. You had some

         24  plans, you talked about plans in the different areas

         25  or what we are doing. As of today, what percentage
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          2  you think is of that CSO's untreated? Just a rough

          3  figure. Is it more than 30 percent now of less than

          4  30 percent?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: It's

          6  approximately the same 30 percent that I spoke to in

          7  my prepared statement.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Okay. You

          9  know of the rapid increase and population which will

         10  then have some sort of effect on waste. With this

         11  rapid increase, what effect do you think -- have you

         12  had any plans to take into that consideration? What

         13  is in the works right now to deliver that?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes.

         15  Well, we do take projected increases as well as the

         16  real increases in population that we have been

         17  experiencing into account in our planning. As we

         18  testified earlier, the capacity of the system is

         19  generally to handle at least twice the dry weather

         20  flow which is the flow we get from the sanitary

         21  sewage only and so the increases that are expected

         22  in population can be absorbed within the existing

         23  system. We are also building infrastructure in

         24  conjunction with development areas.

         25                 As I alluded to in the early part of
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          2  the testimony where portions of the waterfront, for

          3  example, in the Williamsburg Green Point area are

          4  slated for development that we will be building

          5  infrastructure in place. We modeled that in terms of

          6  the effects that that will have on our sewage

          7  treatment plan. At this point, it is mostly what we

          8  are trying to do is control the flow during

          9  rainstorms and prolonged rainstorms and the

         10  additional volume that that sends through the

         11  combined system.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You touched

         13  on an area that we haven't gone into greatly and

         14  that is the fact that there is a lot of development

         15  and you said that we are dealing with much more

         16  infrastructure, et cetera. But you spoke about cost

         17  earlier, do you think the cost will have to be

         18  revised because of the fact that these figures were

         19  given back in the year 2000 for all the different

         20  things that you do, like the treatment plants and

         21  all of that. So no longer would be a couple of

         22  million dollars that you spoke about it being maybe

         23  twice as much.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes,

         25  Council Member Stewart, the cost that I mentioned in
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          2  my prepared statement were, they were currently

          3  estimated cost and they are consistent with the

          4  financial plan that the City's Office of Management

          5  and Budget released in September and also consistent

          6  with the most recent version of our ten year capital

          7  plan. We are always reevaluating our capital needs,

          8  both in terms of taking into account current market

          9  conditions and the construction industry and also in

         10  terms of evaluating the needs for specific

         11  infrastructure.

         12                 For example, when we plan for a

         13  specific housing development areas, we will look at

         14  the infrastructure in place and then determined what

         15  additional facilities are needed and seek to add

         16  that to our capital program. We do have at this

         17  point approximately $1.5 billion funded in the

         18  capital plan for CSO control of the types of

         19  projects that I mentioned in my prepared statement.

         20  We will be looking at that more closely and when the

         21  City's next financial plan is due in January, if

         22  appropriate, we will be changing the amount that we

         23  request in our financial plan.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I have been

         25  in the Council for almost five years now and every
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          2  since that time, I noticed that every time it rains

          3  there is an area my district that we have problems

          4  in terms of CSO, in terms of overflow and all of

          5  that. What plans do you have in dealing with these

          6  local areas because we have called in. Every year we

          7  call in and we seem not to be getting any results in

          8  terms of getting treatment. The problems only occurs

          9  when it rains heavily and we seem to have a big

         10  problem there.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Can you

         12  tell me where that is Council Member Stewart?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: It is in the

         14  eastern portion of my district. Let's say Detmis

         15  (phonetic) and East beyond Ralph. The whole

         16  community complains about the flooding. I would like

         17  you to look into that to see what can be done

         18  because it is a terrible problem every time it

         19  rains. We call in all the time, but --

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Okay. At

         21  the very least, we can dispatch our water and sewer

         22  operations personnel there to look. I can get the

         23  specifics from you later and I'll follow up on that.

         24  We'll look at the existing conditions there.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What is the
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          2  schedule like in terms of cleaning storm drains? How

          3  do you go about that? Is only by complaints or is

          4  there a regular schedule to really deal with storm

          5  drains?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: It is a

          7  combination of both. We have a programmed inspection

          8  and cleaning and repair schedule. We also respond to

          9  specific complaints that mostly come in through the

         10  311 system. Or through other channels such as this

         11  one.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you have

         13  any idea what the response time if a complaint is

         14  lodged?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I don't

         16  have that information with me. I can get that to

         17  you. I know we track it. We track every complaint

         18  that comes in through the 311 system or through

         19  other sources and we do keep track of each

         20  individual response time as well as average response

         21  times. But I don't have that with me.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         23  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you, Council Member Stewart. Council Member Koppell.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you

          3  very much, Mr. Chairman. Apologies to you and to the

          4  witnesses that came in late, but I did read the

          5  prepared statement and I have a specific question

          6  relating to my district in the Bronx in general. I

          7  noticed that on page 12 of your statement, you make

          8  reference to Bronx River which is something that I

          9  have been concerned about for over 30 years and have

         10  been indeed considerably improvements in the Bronx

         11  River. Particularly, I want to give credit to the

         12  Parks Department that's done a great job and the

         13  Bronx River Alliance which has worked as a partner

         14  with the City on cleaning the Bronx River.

         15                 The problem you make reference to in

         16  your comments is one that has existed for many, many

         17  years now and that is that the Bronx River is

         18  polluted by discharges in Westchester which I can't

         19  directly blame the City for. However, I'm

         20  disappointed a little bit in the comment on page

         21  (more than a little bit), on page 13 where you say

         22  with respect -- well, let me read you. Starting on

         23  page 12, DEP's ability to improve the Bronx River is

         24  therefore connected to the commitment of these

         25  communities (because there are communities in
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          2  Westchester) to controlling their improper

          3  discharges. The extent of that commitment is as yet

          4  uncertain.

          5                 Now, this issue of Yonkers and other

          6  Westchester community discharges is not new. It goes

          7  back, as I said, for over 30 years, literally over

          8  30 years. I have been in office for most of that

          9  time and we talked about cleaning up the Bronx River

         10  starting in the early '70's. So I'm not

         11  exaggerating. I'm being perfectly precise. The

         12  extent of the commitment of Yonkers and other

         13  communities has been uncertain for that entire

         14  period. It seems to me that the City should be more

         15  active, I guess proactive is the word these days, in

         16  dealing with these problems in Westchester. Maybe

         17  even to the point of bringing suit against Yonkers

         18  and other communities if they are still polluting

         19  the Bronx River as they have for so many years.

         20                 Also, by the way, the Tibbetts Brook,

         21  although you didn't discuss that here, but I know

         22  the Tibbetts Brook has been polluted and that's also

         23  in my district. I'm just wondering what you are

         24  doing about this and whether perhaps a law suit

         25  would not be appropriate?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Before

          3  we get to that point, Council Member Koppell, we did

          4  initiate a joint water quality sampling and testing

          5  program with Westchester county six months ago

          6  approximately and with the participation of the

          7  State Department of Environmental Conservation. That

          8  program is intended to supply both us, the City and

          9  Westchester county with better data on where the

         10  source of the problems in the Bronx River are

         11  originating and give us better information on how to

         12  proceed with a solution to be developed together

         13  with the City, Westchester and the State.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm glad to

         15  hear after many years this is more actively being

         16  handled. Could I ask that you report to me and to

         17  the Committee as to the progress of that study and

         18  also since I did raise the issue, the Tibbetts Brook

         19  aspect of it. With Tibbetts Brook is not nearly

         20  significantly as the Bronx River, but it runs right

         21  into the heart of my district. Well, the Bronx River

         22  also runs right through my district. It runs right

         23  into Van Cortland Park and the Van Cortland Lake

         24  which just recently were massively rebuilt and very

         25  well rebuilt, but we don't want to see that polluted
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          2  or see the pollution reduced. I would appreciate a

          3  report on that and would encourage the City to be

          4  more aggressive than they have been in the past. I'm

          5  glad you raised it because it is an important point.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Thank

          8  you. We will certainly follow up with you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Koppell. Also, I was going to ask

         12  that question about the pollution coming from

         13  Westchester. I was going to save it, but being that

         14  you brought up, I might as well just sort of follow

         15  up into what you had said, Oliver. To sort of follow

         16  up on your question and on Steve's answer. It seems

         17  that DEP has made the characterization in the

         18  statement that the pollution results from discharges

         19  that you characterize in your statement as improper.

         20  But what you're saying now there is going to be some

         21  effort do more sampling to find out what really is

         22  going on.

         23                 Is that the case that we don't know

         24  what Westchester jurisdictions are responsible for

         25  the improper discharge as part of the problem that

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  is going to be solved by the sampling to figure out

          3  like who the bad guy or bad guys are to sort of go

          4  after? Or is that the purpose? Or is it the case

          5  that we don't know if the discharges are improper or

          6  not and that's what the sampling is for?

          7                 MR. MUELLER: It's the latter. We met

          8  with Westchester county almost two years ago with

          9  this problem. The county understood it. The problem

         10  in Westchester is very fragmented. It is each kind

         11  of town is responsible for their own discharge. The

         12  county has kind of a limited level of enforcement.

         13  DEC has been working on it. They have as you guys

         14  probably know a judicial Consent Order for Yonkers

         15  at least.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't know.

         17  Oliver may know. He lives up there.

         18                 MR. MUELLER: I apologize. There is a

         19  Consent Order with the AG, the State Attorney

         20  General's Office with Yonkers for track down and

         21  disconnection of any illegal dry weather overflows

         22  and that was the suspect that there was legal

         23  connection to the storm system. Most of the area in

         24  Westchester is actually a separate area. It is not a

         25  CSO area. When we have these discharges because of
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          2  an illegal connection to the sewer system, for

          3  whatever reason (development or what not), Yonkers

          4  is under an order. We have initiated the sampling

          5  program with the Westchester County Department of

          6  Health to understand as Yonkers disconnects how does

          7  that impact water quality.

          8                 Are there other bad actors in

          9  Westchester besides Yonkers? And the suspicion is

         10  there may be. But that's what the point of the

         11  sampling program is. That's ongoing and we initiated

         12  the sampling in the last six months, but the

         13  coordination has been going on for several years. We

         14  have also been working through the Army Corps with

         15  the Joint Ecosystem Restoration Project in the Bronx

         16  River where Westchester county is involved, the Army

         17  Corps is involved and we're involved and all those

         18  local sponsors in terms of cleaning up habitat and

         19  improving habitat in the Bronx River as well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The State is

         21  pursuing this as well as you folks through the whole

         22  Consent Order process? Okay. I don't want to belabor

         23  it, but if you could send a copy or whatever you are

         24  going to send to Oliver to the Chair as well. I'm

         25  also concerned about the Bronx River and all of our
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          2  local waters. But particularly fresh water waterbody

          3  which we have precious few of. If you could direct

          4  that to me as well, that would be great.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Of

          6  course.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Through the

          8  Counsel to the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         10  I just would observe since I appreciate your

         11  concern, I would invite you next spring to go down

         12  the Bronx River in a canoe with me. We do that every

         13  spring so you could see it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Canoe, kayak,

         15  whatever.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, good.

         17  We will make sure to invite you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. That would

         19  be great. I'll look forward to that. I have a good

         20  job. This is a good job. I get good offers. That's

         21  great. I just want to follow up on the line

         22  questioning that I was pursuing. When DEP does cost

         23  benefit analysis for source controls, do you value

         24  other economic benefits besides those directly

         25  associated with controlling CSO's. Like the value of
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          2  green streets and some of these other measures to

          3  communities? Of course, there are other benefits

          4  other than just the CSO control that these kind of

          5  measures would bring. Do they figure into the cost

          6  benefit analysis that you do for these source

          7  controls? Anybody?

          8                 MS. LICATA: Well, this issue is not

          9  necessarily unique, but it is a very good point that

         10  you are making because of a lot of the benefits to

         11  be gained by source controls are not limited to

         12  stormwater capturing control. I believe that we

         13  should give due consideration to the fact --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I agree.

         15                 MS. LICATA: -- That there are

         16  synergies with respect to benefits on heat island

         17  effect and those sort of those things. I don't know

         18  that we can quantify it necessarily, but I think it

         19  is probably sufficient to give due consideration to

         20  those ideas to make mention of the types of benefits

         21  that can be obtained if not necessarily what the aim

         22  of the control might be. But that there would be

         23  these added benefits.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Let me say

         25  the following. As much as I appreciate all of the

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  efforts that everyone is doing on both the end- of-

          3  pipe solutions as well as source control, so far

          4  what I have observed here is that I made reference

          5  to the 1999 study that was suppose to look at all

          6  this stuff and your testimony is that you are

          7  unfamiliar with the study. That's what I heard. And

          8  here we are on the precipice of doing our 2007

          9  submission and it seems there may or may not be a

         10  comprehensive analysis done before the 2007

         11  submission which is of concern to me. And as I

         12  understand it, the 2007 submission is going to be

         13  what it is ultimately going to inform the question

         14  of whether or not we make changes to water quality

         15  standards.

         16                 This is to the say that the 2007

         17  submission is a big deal because it may have some

         18  effect on whether or not water quality standards

         19  ultimately get changed. Without having that 2007

         20  submission having the benefit of a comprehensive

         21  analysis of source control, I just find problematic.

         22  I think rather than kind of take you up on your

         23  gracious offer to meet and go over what the analysis

         24  has been to date on source control, I think I need a

         25  written report that sort of quantifies what is
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          2  happening now on source control, how much money have

          3  you dedicated to doing a thorough investigation of

          4  that, with whom has this information been shared

          5  (whether CAC's or others). Because I'm not

          6  comfortable or confident in my sort of humble

          7  estimation, I'm not comfortable or confident that

          8  really enough is being done on this vital subject.

          9  Because we have gotten until June of 2007 to get

         10  this done.

         11                 But for the fact, have we not had

         12  done the Jamaica Bay bill, that has been the

         13  beneficial effect of catalyzing some of this effort

         14  and I'm glad we did it. But had we not done that, I

         15  don't think we would be in a position that we are

         16  today. I don't think that we would be doing as much

         17  as we are doing now even though it seems to me that

         18  it is not enough. A big statement that I just made,

         19  but I'm looking for some kind of response and

         20  looking also for something comprehensive that you

         21  can give me to show your level of effort has been to

         22  date on pursuing these source controls. I want you

         23  to respond to whatever I just said, statement,

         24  question or whatever that was, tirade, rant,

         25  whatever.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: It was a

          3  mixture.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I think

          6  when we testified earlier about the 1999 study, I

          7  don't think we said we were unfamiliar with it. I

          8  personally am because it is about seven years before

          9  my time. I think Jim was saying that we can't right

         10  now at this hearing reconcile for you the 1999 study

         11  versus our current approach. I want Jim to respond

         12  to your statements and questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         14                 MR. MUELLER: Thank you. I do

         15  understand your concerns with doing the '07 report.

         16  We have been working closely with our CAC as you

         17  know and who share similar concerns. Specifically,

         18  you had mentioned before about use classifications.

         19  I think a lot of this revolved around use

         20  classifications --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         22                 MR. MUELLER: -- And water quality

         23  standards.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's actually

         25  a subject matter that I'm going to come back to.

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  This was sort of my line of questioning on the

          3  source controls. I was going to come back for the

          4  CAC and for the water quality standards and in

          5  between now and then, I want to give some of the

          6  other Council Members that have signed up a chance

          7  to answer questions. But if you want to just go

          8  briefly into the water quality standards with the

          9  recognition that we will take up after Council

         10  Member Yassky and Council Member Mark- Viverito have

         11  a chance to ask questions.

         12                 MR. MUELLER: We recognize it is an

         13  important issue and we also recognize that some of

         14  the efforts that Angela described today may not

         15  coincide timing wise with our submittal in June. We

         16  are evaluating that interim measures whether they

         17  are regulatory what not, we are working with DEC

         18  where it is not a reclassification of the use or it

         19  is not a down grading of the water quality

         20  standards, I think are a lot of people fears, but

         21  rather until we have a better defined BMP approach

         22  Citywide especially in localized areas what will be

         23  effective, it is just an interim measure. That's one

         24  thing we are exploring, variances and what not with

         25  DEC. We are actively exploring that where it is not
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          2  a permanent change by June. There is a lot of room

          3  for further analysis to come in here even after June

          4  and direct especially with the BMP issue. We

          5  recognize that is an important issue as do the

          6  Council.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          8                 MR. MUELLER: There is plenty room

          9  regulatory wise where it can be incorporated after

         10  the June submittal. And we're making sure that is

         11  the case. So that's my brief answer.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         13                 MR. MUELLER: But we can answer any

         14  more specific questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you,

         16  Jim. I recognize Council Member Yassky.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         18  Chair Gennaro. I just have a couple of very brief

         19  questions on the same theme that the Chair was just

         20  sounding on, source control. Of course, I'm under no

         21  illusion that as with any other pollution,

         22  environmental issue that we can deal with it

         23  principally or even maybe largely through source

         24  control. We have got to figure out ways of dealing

         25  with it. We are going to generate waste obviously.
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          2  But that has got to be a part of the solution.

          3  Specifically, in talking with Council Member Stewart

          4  a minute ago, you said something Greenpoint

          5  Williamsburg, what were you getting at there? Did I

          6  hear you say that you have taken steps to deal with

          7  the increase in needed capacity that will come with

          8  all the development in that area?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes.

         10  What I was saying in using Greenpoint Williamsburg

         11  as an example of an area of the City that is

         12  undergoing change and is where there is beginning

         13  and where there are plans to be, a significant

         14  amount of residential and other development, that we

         15  evaluate our infrastructure in that area and the

         16  future capacity needs of our infrastructure given

         17  the plan development. We take that into account and

         18  incorporate that as necessary into our capital

         19  needs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: In your

         21  capital plan, I get it. So the steps you've taken

         22  deal with anticipating increase in future demand, if

         23  you will, for sewage treatment and then figuring out

         24  how to respond to that. Did you do anything with

         25  respect to source control? Does the zoning
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          2  regulation, the building standards for all the

          3  development that is taking place there, do anything

          4  to reduce the amount of waste generated that you are

          5  going to have to deal with?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I don't

          7  believe that source control has been mandated for

          8  development in that area.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So that's a

         10  no?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Has there be

         13  any efforts outside of the mandating category just

         14  because you answered that by saying no nothing has

         15  been mandated. Have there been efforts for non-

         16  mandated source control? Do you not work with the

         17  development community to encourage source control?

         18  Has there been either any mandated or non- mandated

         19  efforts at source control?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Well,

         21  recently we have been working with for City Raptor

         22   --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I was going to

         24  get to that next after Greenpoint Williamsburg.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Perhaps
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          2  I was anticipating the question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: As an

          5  example of a currently planned development, we have

          6  been working with For- City Raptor to evaluate their

          7  designs including their plan for stormwater

          8  detention tanks and their planned use of gray water

          9  to recycle stormwater for things like landscaping

         10  irrigation and so we have been working with them to

         11  evaluate that. And also to evaluate the effect of

         12  the planned development on both our ability to

         13  supply water, drinking water in that area and to

         14  handle the waste water that the development will

         15  generate and look at the effects of the waste water

         16  on the Red Hook Waste Water Treatment Plant and the

         17  Gowanus Canal area specifically.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Tell me about

         19  this Gowanus specifically because there have been

         20  claims made among citizen observers that development

         21  in the central Brooklyn area including, but not

         22  limited too, the Atlantic Yards Project will cause

         23  significant increase in the amount of CSO outflow

         24  into the Gowanus Canal. Is that correct?

         25                 MR. MUELLER: We, in our
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          2  infrastructure planning for Gowanus Canal as First

          3  Deputy Commissioner Lawitts mentioned, we have

          4  planned a pumping station upgrade there as well as

          5  an increase in the flushing tunnel. We have taken

          6  into account City planning projections for

          7  population increase in that area that takes a look

          8  out zoning and any development planned into our

          9  population projects. We foresee the infrastructure

         10  changes that we have planned for the canal itself

         11  are certainly capable of meeting existing water

         12  quality standards and this potential for an upgrade

         13  in the use classification for Gowanus because of

         14  these controls. That takes into account the

         15  population growth over, I think, we go out to 2045.

         16  It is over a 40 year period that those current

         17  development and also future development projections

         18  for that area are incorporated into our water

         19  quality projections and the performance of our

         20  infrastructure improvements.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And the

         22  canals, the reason I focus on this, again if I

         23  understand this and I'm pretty unsophisticated and

         24  ignorant about this, so correct me if I'm wrong. As

         25  I understand it, the extent to which we are
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          2  concerned about CSO outflows vary depending on where

          3  they are and some places the outflow gets dissipated

          4  pretty quickly into a large body of water (not that

          5  we're ever not concerned), and other places, that's

          6  not the case. On place, I guess that's not the case

          7  is the Gowanus Canal. I just want to make sure I

          8  understood your response and my lay terms is, yes,

          9  we anticipate an increase in outflow and the way the

         10  City proposes to deal with that is by upgrading our

         11  flushing capacity?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Right.

         13  And Council Member Yassky, you may have missed this

         14  because it was part of my prepared statement, we did

         15  mention there are currently funded approximately $75

         16  million worth of improvements specifically related

         17  to the Gowanus Canal; including upgrading the

         18  flushing tunnel, to handle 40 percent more capacity.

         19  And beginning in the next fiscal year, '08, we will

         20  be as part of that $75 million upgrade, upgrading

         21  the pumping station to provide a 50 percent increase

         22  in its daily capacity and making some other

         23  infrastructure improvements that will directly

         24  affect the Gowanus Canal. All with the objective of

         25  sending more volume directly to the Red Hook Waste
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          2  Water Treatment Plant or in the case of combined

          3  sewer overflows diverting them from the Gowanus

          4  Canal to the Harbor itself.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Again, pardon

          6  my ignorance on the numbers, are those capacity

          7  increases sufficient to, of course, there will be

          8  improved water quality, but ensure that water

          9  quality will not deteriorate even with all the

         10  planned development including Atlantic Yards?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes. And

         12  again as Jim said, I will say it again, it does take

         13  into account the full announced scope of the

         14  Atlantic Yards development and the waste water that

         15  is projected to generate as well as other

         16  development in that same waste shed area when we

         17  work with City Planning and other agencies to

         18  develop those projections. The capital improvements

         19  that we are going to begin to construct next year

         20  should again not only take into account the

         21  additional capacity needs, but also improve the

         22  water quality of Gowanus. Yes, it will not only

         23  prevent any further degradation, it will actually

         24  improve.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Water quality,
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          2  okay. My last question will be and I commend you for

          3  the work you have put in on Atlantic Yards to at

          4  least explore the possibility and maybe even to

          5  encourage measures that will mean that the increase

          6  in demands on your system are less than they

          7  otherwise would be. What are we doing to do that

          8  more broadly either through Building Department

          9  regulations, zoning regulations, some effort at kind

         10  of making this standard operating procedure

         11  throughout the City? As part of your answer, I read

         12  the statement and I saw you said that the new office

         13  of sustainability has been of great help of your

         14  efforts at preparing the 2007 submission. Have they

         15  suggested any measures along those lines, building

         16  regulations, zoning regulations?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We have

         18  been working with the number of agencies including

         19  the Buildings Department, Parks Department. I think,

         20  as you know, Local Office number, I forget right

         21  now, but that was passed one or two years ago

         22  requiring new school construction to conform to

         23  green building standards for schools that are

         24  beginning design this year. But in terms of actual

         25  changes in regulations or changes to the building
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          2  code, I can't speak to that right now because I

          3  don't know the answer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'll leave it

          5  at this and I don't want to take anymore of the

          6  Committee's time. Those are not currently planned to

          7  be part of the 2007 long- term plan, the source

          8  control or whatever is going to be in there on

          9  source control doesn't sound like it is currently

         10  contemplated to include building regulations, zoning

         11  regulations, efforts to change standard operating

         12  procedure. If you want to contradict that, feel

         13  free, but I'm going to kind of paraphrase that. I'm

         14  going to make that conclusion.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I can't

         16  commit to you right now that those changes and

         17  zoning and building codes will be made.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, I'm saying

         19  the Administration is not currently contemplating

         20  including that kind of source control in your 2007

         21  submission. I'm asking you to contradict me if I'm

         22  incorrect. You are not currently planning to do

         23  that?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Right.

         25  It's not currently mandated and I think we need to
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          2  keep the Committee appraised as the discussions

          3  proceed as part of the sustainability effort.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes. I'll

          5  leave it then and I would encourage you to explore

          6  that. I think it would be a disappointment if the

          7  2007 submission didn't include any broad base source

          8  control effort and I think that would have to

          9  include something design to change standard building

         10  practice. Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Chair, I

         11  appreciate your indulging me.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         13  Council Member Yassky. Before I call on Council

         14  Member Mark- Viverito, I have been fortunate to have

         15  been appointed into this Sustainability Advisory

         16  Committee and there has been a lot of discussion of

         17  practices like this and in part of what I am trying

         18  to do here today is to do everything I can to make

         19  sure that these are included in the plan. Because

         20  what good is to have Sustainability Advisory

         21  Committee if we can't get it out of that room and

         22  into our planning processes. Thank you, Council

         23  Member Yassky for that line of questioning. With

         24  that I recognize Council Member Melissa Mark-

         25  Viverito.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

          3  you, Mr. Chair. My line of questions also along the

          4  lines some of the issues that were raised by

          5  Councilman Yassky. In looking that it is safe to

          6  assume and relatively new to this whole process as

          7  well, but I've taken a real deep and profound

          8  interest in environmental conservation in general

          9  and I think that unfortunately as a City that serves

         10  as a model for many others, we are way behind. Way

         11  behind on conservation measures and I'm really

         12  trying to look at innovative and creative ways of

         13  how do we improve on our environment, but also in

         14  the end in this specific case, when we are taking

         15  about CSO, implementing creative and innovative

         16  strategies that will prevent overflow and implement

         17  strategies that will help or ameliorate some of the

         18  over taxing of our City's infrastructure.

         19                 I think that I really do want to

         20  impress upon the importance of the conservation

         21  aspect within your plan and that really needs to be

         22  looked at seriously. We are very quick to give major

         23  tax breaks to corporations. When we look at ID, the

         24  IDA and the bonds that we issue for the Yankees

         25  Stadium or for the Randalls Island Waterpark that is

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  coming into my district, I think it would be really

          3  easy to kind of incorporate that if you are going to

          4  receive some sort of tax break from the City that

          5  you have to implement measures within your

          6  structures or within what you are developing to help

          7  mitigate some of the problems that we are having on

          8  our infrastructure. I mean some of the run off

          9  measures that you are talking about with regards to

         10  Atlantic Yards. That should be done more

         11  comprehensively across the board and not done piece

         12  meal as I think that unfortunately we've been seeing

         13  these measures implemented.

         14                 I would really have us look as

         15  legislators at maybe putting measures in. If you do

         16  get a bond, a tax rebond in order to issue your

         17  development, we may want to include some additional

         18  measures that will help preserve our environment in

         19  one way or the other or improve our water quality.

         20  My question is also regards with to that is maybe we

         21  take looking at tax breaks; green roofs is one

         22  strategy. It does prevent runoffs in terms when

         23  storms happen. That's just one example of one

         24  strategy that I'm aware of that we may want to look

         25  at implementing comprehensively in the City or

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  expecting some of our developers to implement. Just

          3  with regards to conservation in general and that

          4  really should be part of a larger element of your

          5  plan. It should probably be a real substantial part

          6  of your plan. It does save money in the end. What

          7  kind of strategies or discussions have emerged with

          8  the Mayor's Office of Sustainability with regards to

          9  this?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: If I

         11  could address maybe the earlier part of your

         12  statement first about conservation measures and just

         13  recall for the Committee that in the early 1990's,

         14  the City launched a multi- prong water consumption

         15  conservation effort which included the toilet rebate

         16  program which resulted in the replacement of over a

         17  million high- volume consumption toilets with low

         18  flow toilets. And also, started the metered water

         19  billing program which was also instrumental in

         20  reducing consumption and the less water that's

         21  consumed, the less ends up in the waste water

         22  system. Every conservation measure we successfully

         23  implement on the water use ends up providing

         24  benefits in terms of effects on CSO's and outflows.

         25  We are --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Right.

          3  Can I ask you one question in regards to that?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Is it

          6  safe to assume and that's why I'm asking the

          7  question, is it safe to assume that the overflow,

          8  does it primarily happen as a result of when storms

          9  occur, overflow and rain, the capacity is taxed?

         10  That's primarily when the overflow happens. I think

         11  on the consumption end, it seems to be yes, those

         12  are great measures. But we need to also look at

         13  primarily how to mitigate the overflow and the

         14  runoff going into our systems because that seems to

         15  be what is creating the majority of the overflow. Am

         16  I safe to assume that?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Correct.

         18  But for every gallon that --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Less

         20  that what we consume, correct.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: -- We

         22  don't consume, there --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: More

         24  ability --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: --
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          2  Depending on what the nature of the consumption is,

          3  but if it is toilet, shower use and so on, that's a

          4  gallon less that's ending up in the waste water

          5  system. We will be launching over the next couple of

          6  years a second phase a toilet rebate program. We are

          7  also going to be expanding the water conservation

          8  program to include washing machines, both

          9  institutional and in apartment buildings and working

         10  with the Department of Education and school

         11  construction authority to expand into their capital

         12  program more aggressive of replacement of high

         13  consumption fixtures with low consumption. And all

         14  of those will have beneficial effects in addition to

         15  the source control measures that you mentioned on

         16  the waste water end which we will also be looking

         17  at.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: But it

         19  doesn't seem like there really has been a

         20  comprehensive approach to that aspect. You are

         21  talking about all the rebates on the consumption

         22  end, but I guess that's probably an area that you

         23  could use a little bit more analysis and maybe

         24  creative thinking it seems.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Correct,
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          2  correct. I think that will be borne out hopefully in

          3  the sustainability effort.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: But

          5  you do plan to include it for that to be an aspect

          6  of your proposal?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes, we

          8  plan to look and evaluate that very much as part of

          9  the effort.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Thank

         11  you, Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you and

         13  thank you, Council Member Mark- Viverito. We are

         14  joined by Council Member Bill DeBlasio, another

         15  valued member of this Committee. Let me now get into

         16  some of those other topics that I said was going to

         17  talk about. We spoke very briefly about the new

         18  changes, possible changes in water quality

         19  standards. The direct question is, are you planning

         20  to petition the New York State DEC to change

         21  designated uses or water quality standards for

         22  certain City waterbodies?

         23                 MR. MUELLER: We have submitted a plan

         24  for Paedergat Basin which is our long- term patrol

         25  plan for Paedergat. As part of that, we have drafted
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          2  a use attainability analysis that reviews uses and

          3  as part of that, the suggestion was made that part

          4  of Paedergat Basin might require a UAA. In working

          5  this out with the State, I think we both agree it is

          6  premature to actually go forward with the UAA and

          7  we've recommended post- construction monitoring to

          8  see how the water body does and maybe it will

          9  respond better.

         10                 In addition, the BMP's, the source

         11  controls that we mentioned before will probably play

         12  a very big role in terms of what additional source

         13  control aside from end- of- pipe we can feasibility

         14  implement more kind of reductions we might see from

         15  that. In terms of acting on any UAA's, our agreement

         16  right now with the State is, we've submitted a

         17  draft. We both agreed it is premature and we're not

         18  pursing that. But we will pursue in the short term

         19  and I alluded to it before and we just submitted one

         20  for the Flushing Creek tank that First Deputy

         21  Commissioner Lawitts mentioned before, is a variance

         22  in the short- term as we more fully identify

         23  feasible source control alternatives and see how

         24  actual water quality responds to the end- of- pipe

         25  controls we are currently constructing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Now for

          3  the first one which is the Paedergat Basin, that's

          4  premature and you're not going forward with that.

          5  What is it that you submitted again?

          6                 MR. MUELLER: It's called a Use

          7  Attainability Analysis.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. You did

          9  the UAA, but you don't want them to rule on that or

         10  you are holding an abeyance or what is the status of

         11  that?

         12                 MR. MUELLER: We've agreed with the

         13  State that it is premature to act on it. They have

         14  reviewed it. We've discussed it. Actually it was a

         15  very good discussion document. We've agreed not to

         16  go forward with that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is that based on

         18  the State's advice to you? You submitted it to the

         19  State with the intent of having it go forward and

         20  the State sort of counselled you and said do you

         21  really want to do this. Why don't you try something

         22  else? Was that the dynamic?

         23                 MR. MUELLER: I think it was both of

         24  us saying what should we do. And EPA was involved as

         25  well on our government steering committee, so this
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          2  is certainly not something we have undertaken alone.

          3  All the regulatory agencies including ourselves

          4  acknowledge the issue and we were certainly keyed to

          5  the discussion in terms of presenting the data,

          6  presenting the alternatives, and presenting what we

          7  thought was feasible and it was a joint decision

          8  that it is premature to act on that UAA.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. With

         10  regard to Flushing, you brought up the concept of a

         11  variance. A variance means that you don't want to

         12  change the standard in perpetuity. Talk about the

         13  variance procedure and how that works.

         14                 MR. MUELLER: Sure. It is a variance

         15  to the SPDES's permit. All of the State Pollution

         16  Discharge Elimination System. That's SPDES's for

         17  short and that is permitted. Each waste water

         18  treatment plant has a SPDES's permit and each of the

         19  CSO facilities we are constructing are embodied

         20  under the permit for each treatment plant. We've

         21  submitted the proper permitting forms for Paedergat,

         22  for Flushing. So each facility is permitted,

         23  obviously permitted for construction. But the

         24  recognition in terms of the modeling analysis that

         25  we have done would show that water quality standards
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          2  will not be meet 100 percent of the time; even

          3  though water quality will be drastically improved.

          4  In recognition of that, we will file a variance to

          5  that SPDES's permit. We have done this on Flushing

          6  Creek. It was submitted about a week and a half ago

          7  and as First Deputy Commissioner Lawitts mentioned,

          8  that facility is scheduled to come on line at the

          9  end of November.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 MR. MUELLER: We have submitted the

         12  variance for that. We have been working with the

         13  State rigorously in terms of these type of issues,

         14  in terms of regulatory issues. And I think that we

         15  all acknowledge that source control where feasible

         16  is absolutely a great thing. And the synergies

         17  Angela mentioned before are even better when you

         18  have not just a CSO benefit, but also heat island

         19  effect or whatever greening the neighborhood and

         20  just reducing impervious area. That's a key element

         21  that we can't quantify today in terms of what it

         22  will mean, but we think it is a very good thing that

         23  it should be incorporated when we determine what's

         24  feasible and at that point either make a decision to

         25  upgrade classifications like we probably will
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          2  recommend for Gowanus Canal after we build the

          3  infrastructure, do our post- construction monitoring

          4  or maintain classifications or hopefully the BMP's

          5  prove to be feasible and prove to be a very

          6  effective source control.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: When you applied

          8  for a variance, how long does the variance last?

          9  Does it have a finite time line and then you have to

         10  change it after that or how does that work?

         11                 MR. MUELLER: Actually all the

         12  mechanisms, UAA's or variance all have a finite time

         13  line. I think UAA's would be every three years they

         14  would have to reviewed. The variance, the permits

         15  are renewed every five years. So that would be part

         16  of that process. Everything is renewable, everything

         17  is reviewable on a fairly regular basis.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I guess in my

         19  own mind, what is the difference between a variance

         20  which in my mind would sort of temporarily change

         21  the water quality standard and a permanent change so

         22  to speak for a lack of better way to characterize

         23  it. Is there a difference between those two?

         24                 MR. MUELLER: I think the perception

         25  is that a UAA is harder to reverse once that's
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          2  performed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the UAA they

          4  are reviewed every three years, you said?

          5                 MR. MUELLER: That's my understanding.

          6  That each waterbody throughout New York State should

          7  be reviewed every three years. Whether it is or not

          8  as resources and what not, I know it is a rotation.

          9  That's a logistical issue for the State. That's not

         10  obviously the City's preview.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. For now we

         12  have got Paedergat Basin that we are not going

         13  forward with that. We did the UAA, we are not doing

         14  that now. We've gotten Flushing --

         15                 MR. MUELLER: Creek.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Creek, where

         17  that's going to be a --

         18                 MR. MUELLER: We've submitted a

         19  variance.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- A variance.

         21  You've got Gowanus, where we are looking to go the

         22  other way and upgrade the water quality standard.

         23  Right?

         24                 MR. MUELLER: Potentially, yes. Again,

         25  post- construction monitoring. Well our projections
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          2  are that Gowanus is actually very good robust

          3  project that has a very good water quality.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. What other

          5  waterbodies would be on the list for possible, I

          6  guess, changes. Whether it be some kind of

          7  downgrading, whether the UAA or just the variance

          8  and possible upgrades, are there other waterbodies

          9  that we are looking at possibly going up or down.

         10  What else should be know about?

         11                 MR. MUELLER: We are currently looking

         12  at all the waterbodies in the City and these are the

         13  plans. We just submitted Paedergat a couple of

         14  months ago. Gowanus, we presented this to the

         15  community and we're submitting that very shortly.

         16  The rest of them are -- this is the June deadline.

         17  So we are actively working on the rest on them and

         18  we can keep you informed of what we are doing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So by June for

         20  each of the 18 waterbodies or whatever it is, there

         21  will be something for each of the 18 waterbodies, we

         22  are going to know, by June, we are going to know

         23  whether or not there is an attempt to either

         24  downgrade the water quality standards, upgrade them

         25  or leave them alone?
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          2                 MR. MUELLER: For the most part for

          3  most of these waterbodies, we want to do post-

          4  construction monitoring to see how the waterbody

          5  responds. As I mentioned before for Paedergat Basin

          6  and Flushing Creek, before we make any final

          7  determinations, we've agreed upon that with the

          8  State at least currently. We wouldn't be proposing

          9  in June to make any regulatory provisions. The BMP

         10  source controls that you guys have mentioned --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         12                 MR. MUELLER: -- Before are

         13  prominently in the future in terms of what

         14  additional measures might be implemented to further

         15  improve water quality, we have yet to see what that

         16  would be. So that would be interesting and very key

         17  what comes out of that and what we can incorporate

         18  into future water quality improvements.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Counsel has a

         20  question that I would like to have her ask on the

         21  record. I recognize Donna DeCostanzo.

         22                 MS. DECOSTANZO: My question is just

         23  are you just talking about the source water, the

         24  BMP's, and so when you were talking about June,

         25  2007, the question is just whether or not then DEP
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          2  is committing to the fact that the analysis of the

          3  source water BMP's is going to figure into whether

          4  or not the DEP petitions, the DEC either for a

          5  variance or for a change in the designated use for

          6  the water quality standards.

          7                 MR. MUELLER: Right. As I spoke

          8  before, depending on what's available from that

          9  study will depend on what will happen in June. What

         10  I'm trying to forecast for you, I hope I'm being

         11  clear about it is we probably will not make any

         12  revisions or recommendations for revisions of the

         13  water quality standards in June. If we do need any

         14  temporary relief because of technical issues or

         15  whatnot, we will pursue a variance like we are in

         16  Flushing Creek and that's what we have agreed upon

         17  with DEC. The BMP's, I think what you have heard

         18  today and we're trying to be clear as possible, is

         19  the time line on BMP's is likely not going to match

         20  the June '07 time line no matter how much we want it

         21  to and we're working actively on this.

         22                 This is not something analytically,

         23  politically, we are actively engaged in this. That

         24  time line will follow as quickly as it can. I hope

         25  we can incorporate something in June of '07. I
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          2  cannot commit that to you today because I don't know

          3  what it will be and I don't know when it will be

          4  available. But, if it goes beyond June of '07, it

          5  can incorporated at a later date in the long- term

          6  control as part of the plan to improve water

          7  quality. We would love if it would show that and it

          8  is effective. I'm personally rooting for that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Okay.

         10  We will ask a little bit about the CAC's. There is

         11  one CAC for each of the 18 waterbodies. How does

         12  that work?

         13                 MR. MUELLER: We've actually

         14  geographically --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You have got to

         16  speak directly right into the microphone.

         17                 MR. MUELLER: I apologize. We've

         18  actually tried to consolidate these geographically

         19  so there are some that are grouped together in terms

         20  of stakeholder teams. There are some that are stand

         21  alone. Gowanus Canal was stand alone; Bronx River

         22  was stand alone. Depending on the geography, East

         23  River we are trying to lump some of the others

         24  together, Hutchinson River, Westchester Creek, those

         25  types of things; Jamaica Bay we've lumped in
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          2  Hendericks Creek --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right, right.

          4  Okay. With regard to what we are just talking about

          5  the water quality standards and the variance process

          6  and that whole subject matter, to what extent do the

          7  CAC's participate in that process?

          8                 MR. MUELLER: It's actually a key

          9  part. It is required, mandated by the EPA policy on

         10  CSO on long- term control plan development. It is an

         11  explicit section, public participation. It's not

         12  defined how that should be done. We've chosen a

         13  fairly rigorous public participation where it is a

         14  series of meetings over about a year and open water

         15  CAC, we have seven meetings planned because it is

         16  such a diverse geography. Some of the more targeted

         17  water bodies, we try to do it in about four

         18  meetings. But it is over several months. It is not

         19  just a public hearing like here is what we are going

         20  to do and then we go home. It's an active back and

         21  forth --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It is like a

         23  round table discussion, is that a way to

         24  characterize it?

         25                 MR. MUELLER: It's a little bit more
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          2  than that because basically DEP will come is with a

          3  lot of the technical analysis of what's feasible and

          4  not only that, what the policy will require us to

          5  look at to inform the discussion. And then it is

          6  input from the community in terms what uses

          7  currently exist, what uses they are looking to

          8  protect. Other uses that maybe they care more about

          9  than water quality. As you can guess from your own

         10  constituency, there are a lot of varying opinions

         11  about maybe what should be invested in and what

         12  should be improved in the water quality. But we try

         13  to take all of that into account as well as the

         14  technical basis for making decisions and come to a

         15  recommended plan.

         16                 We try to achieve consensus. That is

         17  our goal. And we have stated this, we do the reserve

         18  the right to submit a plan following the public

         19  participation plan we've outlined, to submit a plan

         20  that might be in conflict with what some of the

         21  public would want. We would flag that obviously. But

         22  we try to achieve consensus. That's our main goal

         23  that we come to an agreement with the community as

         24  well with ourselves of what makes sense for each and

         25  every waterbody.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Have

          3  the CAC's been supportive of the variance that you

          4  are putting forward for Flushing and for the UAA

          5  process for Paedergat?

          6                 MR. MUELLER: We have covered some of

          7  that with them, but we don't really get into

          8  regulatory. They are supportive of the tank. They

          9  are supportive of the water quality improvement.

         10  They are really supportive of the reduction and

         11  odors. That's usually the most aesthetic piece of

         12  these localized waterbodies is reduce the odors. For

         13  those of us familiar with Flushing Bay or Creek,

         14  sometimes the odors can get fairly bad. They are

         15  supportive of that. We haven't really dove into

         16  explicitly with them that we are submitting a

         17  variance next week. They like the tank and usually

         18  they want the infrastructure on line sooner rather

         19  than later. That's really namely the communities

         20  concerns.

         21                 With the open water CAC, we have

         22  gotten into those issues in terms of approach and

         23  they are worried about that and share your concern

         24  over water quality standards and maybe lowering

         25  water quality standards. We are trying to assure
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          2  everyone that we're trying to propose the best plan

          3  for the City of New York in terms of end- of- pipe

          4  controls. We are trying to integrate it with BMP's

          5  and we're not trying to prematurely change any

          6  standards. But follow and work closely with our

          7  regulator which is DEC on what makes sense on a

          8  regulatory side to best what we think makes sense

          9  from a community perspective and a department

         10  perspective as far as investments in each waterbody.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. With

         12  regard, you mentioned you didn't bring up with the

         13  CAC about or that you wouldn't necessarily bring up

         14  with them that you are going to be going for a

         15  variance or whatever. Isn't that the kind of thing

         16  that to discuss with them? Wouldn't that be

         17  appropriate to discuss that with them?

         18                 MR. MUELLER: We can, Councilman. I

         19  won't argue whether it is appropriate or not. I know

         20  their focus. When we talk about these types of

         21  projects with the community, we go through

         22  predominately the community boards, the first

         23  question is not how you regulatory going to make

         24  this work. The first question is, what is the impact

         25  on the community and what is the impact on the
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          2  waterbody. That's usually their main focus. And open

          3  water CAC has been very concerned about regulatory.

          4  When people are concerned about that, we certainly

          5  bring that up and can present that. If the

          6  Councilman feels that we should go back and revisit

          7  a regulatory approach on a tank that is coming on

          8  line in six weeks, we can do that too. It's not

          9  precluded from going back to the community and

         10  reviewing any of these type of measures.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I guess it is up

         12  to the individual CAC and what their kind of areas

         13   --

         14                 MR. MUELLER: Exactly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Of interest

         16  are. But I mean, I don't know what I'm going to hear

         17  in the way of testimony. Again, you can't speak for

         18  them because they are testify after you.

         19                 MR. MUELLER: I don't want to speak

         20  for them.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Am I going to

         22  hear from them that there has been some certain

         23  items that get discussed with the CAC and other

         24  items that don't discussed that they would like to

         25  have discussed? Do you think they think that?
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          2                 MR. MUELLER: You may. I don't want to

          3  presume what they will.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          5                 MR. MUELLER: But I certainly would

          6  hope that any member of the CAC if items are not

          7  getting discussed that they would like to have

          8  discussed, they would come to me before they would

          9  come to you and say we would like to discuss this.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fair enough.

         11                 MR. MUELLER: Because I think we do

         12  accommodate agenda items. I think we have been very

         13  accommodating to all of our CAC's, anything they

         14  want to put on the agenda. We have done break out

         15  workshops on BMP's. We've actively set these things

         16  up --               CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         17                 MR. MUELLER: -- In recognition of

         18  interest of the CAC. If we have missed something, it

         19  was unintentional and if somebody would like

         20  something on the agenda, I hope they would come to

         21  me first so we can actually fulfill their request.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fair enough.

         23  Again on CAC's, with regard to the BMP's, the source

         24  control, how are the committees going to be involved

         25  in the analysis of the feasibility of incorporating
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          2  these stormwater source control measures? Are they

          3  part of that process?

          4                 MR. MUELLER: I guess the good news

          5  is, I attended a Mayor's Office Sustainability

          6  Meeting last week and NRDC was there and several of

          7  the other key enviros that are also on the open

          8  water CAC that we formulated. So they are actively

          9  engaged. And this is with the Mayor's Office

         10  Sustainability initiative and they are right in the

         11  room. And we had very good commentary.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's good. But

         13  I'm more concerned about for the purposes of this

         14  question anyway, sort of like the local CAC

         15  structure. Do you envision the local CAC's being

         16  directly involved in the analysis of the feasibility

         17  of incorporating the stormwater BMP's? What would

         18  their role be, the local CAC's and the analysis of

         19  the BMP's and like the feasibility? What is their

         20  role?

         21                 MR. MUELLER: My goal would be as the

         22  information becomes available and I think Angela

         23  spoke very well in terms of our methodology and our

         24  approach and comprehensiveness of the process is to

         25  present it and review with them and here is what
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          2  we're finding and receive comment on that. We did

          3  have a workshop in August with our open water CAC.

          4  They had some -- it is a very good dialogue in terms

          5   --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Open water?

          7                 MR. MUELLER: Right. Like the Hudson

          8   --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, fine.

         10                 MR. MUELLER: -- Geography that I

         11  mentioned before.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. That's one

         13  of the CAC's.

         14                 MR. MUELLER: Right. We call it the

         15  open water. Just geographically, it is the Inner

         16  Harbor, Outer Harbor areas.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         18                 MR. MUELLER: Hudson River, those type

         19  of areas. We had a very good dialogue with them in

         20  August in terms of BMP's and we presented our

         21  initial methodology that Angela spoke about before

         22   --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         24                 MR. MUELLER: -- Of here is how we are

         25  approaching it, in terms of drainage area by
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          2  drainage area opportunities. As you know, each

          3  drainage area has its own characteristics. It is not

          4  a cookie cutter approach of what might apply to one

          5  as the other. And we kind of walked them through

          6  that. The analysis that Angela mentioned, the

          7  comprehensive analysis that we're undertaking and

          8  supporting is as that becomes flushed out and as

          9  results become available, my goal would be to be

         10  transparent about it and present that. Here's what

         11  we found. Here's what we found to be feasible.

         12  Here's what we found not to be feasible. Here is

         13  potential timelines for that. But I can't presume

         14  what it is right now.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         16                 MR. MUELLER: But certainly, would be

         17  to go back and review that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         19                 MR. MUELLER: Especially if we were

         20  going to incorporate something into the long- term

         21  control plan.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. I

         23  recognize Council Member Melissa Mark- Viverito for

         24  another question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Just a
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          2  quick question. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Would you be

          3  able to tell us how many overflow events happened

          4  last year? I don't know if that mentioned earlier?

          5                 MR. MUELLER: The number of overflow

          6  events? Off the top of my head -- there is over 450

          7  outfalls. We get about 70 percent capture, so maybe

          8  30 percent of the time those outfalls might

          9  overflow. If you have about 100 events, clearly I'm

         10  backing into this --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Of

         12  course.

         13                 MR. MUELLER: -- Just give you an

         14  order of magnitude, it rains about every once three,

         15  three and half days, statistically. I know we go two

         16  weeks without rain and then we will get rain. But

         17  statistically on average, it is about once every

         18  three and half days. So if you had about 100 days of

         19  rain out of 365, you capture 70 percent of that

         20  fully. Some of the larger storms you don't, you

         21  could end up between 30 and 40 overflows per

         22  drainage area.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Have

         24  you been seeing --

         25                 MR. MUELLER: But it varies. I'm
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          2  really giving you an average kind of ball park.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: That's

          4  all right. I just kind of wanted to get an idea. But

          5  with regards to an analysis over a period of years,

          6  have you seen an increase in a number of overflows

          7  or actually a decrease?

          8                 MR. MUELLER: We have done a

          9  tremendous, the City, has done a tremendous job in

         10  terms of increasing its percent capture. We continue

         11  to try to maximize flow to our treatment plans. We

         12  continue to explore in line storage to present

         13  overflows. Each drainage area is different.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Right.

         15                 MR. MUELLER: As I mentioned before,

         16  there is areas with flooding. There is no doubt

         17  about it. There is other areas that don't have

         18  flooding. Each drainage area has its own

         19  characteristic. Some are older than others so the

         20  capacity of the sewers might be less than others

         21  that were built more recently. More recently, I mean

         22  within the last 50 years as opposed to the last 100

         23  years. It varies. But we've actually seen it trend

         24  down in terms of the level of overflows and the

         25  water quality graphs that we shared with you before,
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          2  I think, show a drastic improvement in water

          3  quality. It's not only a number of overflows and

          4  percent capture, but you see an actual quantifiable

          5  benefit to the local echo system in terms of

          6  dissolved oxygen and lower pathogens and so it is

          7  has been a very quantifiable benefit. It is

          8  something that we should all be proud of.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         12  you, Council Member Mark- Viverito. Yes, I just want

         13  to thank you for being here today. It is great to

         14  have you. I just want to recap that one thing we did

         15  ask for in our back and forth was some kind of

         16  report showing what's being done to fully assess, I

         17  guess the source control BMP's and the amount of

         18  money that's being dedicated to that effort. And if

         19  you could get that to Donna DeCostanzo, Counsel to

         20  the Committee, that would be great. There is that

         21  one line in your testimony that talks about the

         22  limited value of these measures. Well, I guess

         23  everything has a limit on it. But when we see

         24  limited, we want to do everything we possibly can

         25  and that's why we need that report. With that said,
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          2  I just want to thank you very much for being here

          3  today, Steve, Angela, and Jim. Nice to make your

          4  acquaintance. Thanks for all your great work. We

          5  really, really appreciate it.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Thank

          7  you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We have the next

          9  panel. Actually we had wanted to get everyone in one

         10  panel and that's not going to be able to happen and

         11  so I want to state at the outset that both panels

         12  are of equal stature. Everyone testifying is great.

         13  But the first panel will be Paul Mankiewicz of the

         14  Gaia Institute; Reed Super of Columbia Law School;

         15  Lawrence Levine of NRDC; Basil Seggos of

         16  Riverkeeper; Franko Montalto of Columbia University.

         17  Basil, I've got to say when Oliver was talking about

         18  the Bronx River, I figured you would have gotten on

         19  your cell phone and like dispatched the Riverkeeper

         20  Mobile Unit or something to the Bronx River for some

         21  patrols there to find out who is defiling the Bronx

         22  River up in Westchester.

         23                 MR. SEGGOS: Our helicopter is

         24  actually out right now taking snapshots.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, good.
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          2                 MR. SEGGOS: The problem is going to

          3  be fixed by this evening.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's the kind

          5  of commando spirit that we love. Particularly if it

          6  is aimed at Westchester. Counsel to the Committee,

          7  Donna DeCostanzo is doing her job and looking at the

          8  time and seeing and she is compelled to advise me

          9  for the purposes of moving the hearing along to put

         10  folks on the clock. I'm going to say no to that. But

         11  with that said, we want everyone to be as succinct

         12  as they possibly can be. We're not going to do the

         13  clock, but we're going to ask people to be concise.

         14  With that said, Donna will give folks the oath and

         15  then we can proceed.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please raise

         17  your right hand. In the testimony that you are about

         18  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         19  the whole truth and nothing by the truth?

         20                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: I do.

         21                 MR. SUPER: I do.

         22                 MR. LEVINE: I do.

         23                 MR. SEGGOS: I do.

         24                 MR. MONTALTO: I do.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What we will do

          3  is I guess we will start to my right. We will start

          4  with Paul and go to your right my left. Okay. Paul

          5  is going to set the standard for succinct concise

          6  testimony that everyone will emulate. Hold on. I

          7  just want to recognize that we have some very, very

          8  snappy looking visitors up in the balcony.

          9  Ordinarily someone will hand me a little piece of

         10  paper and indicate who they are and where they are

         11  from. But with all those uniforms and epaulets and

         12  color brass, I'm feeling very safe right about now.

         13  We greatly appreciate you coming to City Hall and

         14  see what it is we are doing.

         15                 We are having a hearing of the

         16  Committee on Environmental Protection. This is that

         17  Committee and we are having an oversight hearing on

         18  the City's efforts to improve our sort of coastal

         19  water quality. Talking about some sewage issues and

         20  that's our deal. Pleasure to have you. Pleasure to

         21  have you. Thanks for being here today. Military

         22  folks presumably. Where are you from? Thank you all

         23  for your service to your country and for visiting

         24  our little small town on the Hudson here. We are

         25  grateful to have you. Thank you very much. Okay,
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          2  Paul.

          3                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Yes, just in brief.

          4  As you know, the 450 combined sewers discharge some

          5  40 billion gallons discharge into the estuaries each

          6  year. I just want to put that in equivalent terms.

          7  We have maybe a tenth of the City covered by green

          8  streets, by green spaces altogether. Something like

          9  half, excuse me let me get this right. Something

         10  like half million trees. The half million trees

         11  could transpire something like the same amount of

         12  water that goes after the combined sewer, something

         13  like the tens of billions of gallons of water.

         14                 I just want to say that we have

         15  regulators that could move about the quantity of

         16  water that we now dump into the estuaries, literally

         17  in place. There are not exactly in the right place,

         18  but the concept is that something a tenth of the

         19  City's coverage could infiltrate something like an

         20  inch of water over the whole 300 square miles of

         21  landscape. We have a soil study, maybe the best

         22  urban soil study anywhere going on in the City

         23  presently. And again, order of magnitude that's

         24  about what you would have to capture to decrease the

         25  volume or eliminate the volume of combined sewer.
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          2                 DEP with its magnificent blue belt

          3  project altogether has not built a single stormwater

          4  capture park based on infiltration as of yet. And

          5  this would obviously be a great project given the

          6  fact that they have the monitoring capacity to

          7  actually do this along the Bronx River, in Jamaica

          8  Bay, in your district in Queens and actually

          9  throughout the glaciated especially the glaciated

         10  sections of the City altogether have deep tills

         11  often with volumes that are much, much, much greater

         12  than what goes into the combined sewer. Get the

         13  water on the land, get it into the ground. It is

         14  different from Seattle here, but we have an

         15  excellent sort of academic institutions that could

         16  join us in monitoring and to see actually how these

         17  systems could behave.

         18                 Modeling without these kind of data

         19  in essence tends to be a failure. I have to say, I

         20  have to commend Parks Department because they built

         21  now with some relatively small help on my side from

         22  the design side, Parks Department has built about

         23  ten stormwater capture green street parks which

         24  probably have capacity of something like one to ten.

         25  That is about one acre of park or some square feet
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          2  can capture something like ten acres. That needs to

          3  be measured as well. There is a picture in what I

          4  have given here.

          5                 There is another point that is

          6  critical that I will make and it will be one of the

          7  last two, trying to be the lead on briefness brevity

          8  here. There is technologies that are basically

          9  recycled plaster structure for building below grade

         10  essentially man made aquifers. And the cost of those

         11  might be something like a dollar per capital gallon

         12  as opposed to $8.00 per capital gallon that we are

         13  spending presently on the large tanks. By adding

         14  essentially an augmented tree pit type of

         15  environment around tree plantings, we should be able

         16  to capture very large volumes of water. By very

         17  large volumes, I mean something like ten gallons per

         18  linear foot of roadway. Or another way to look at it

         19  is were you to take some of the structures that are

         20  pictured here and put them under a parking lot,

         21  about an acre parking lot would capture about a

         22  million gallons of water at a cost around $1.00 per

         23  capital gallon. As I said, one eighth or maybe one

         24  tenth of what it cost to build a tank.

         25                 On the upstream side, by coupling
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          2  green street type technologies with water capture,

          3  the quantities are about right for actually

          4  addressing the combined sewer. I'll just mention one

          5  other point which is down at the far end. We have 14

          6  waste water treatment plants and they discharge

          7  pathogens and the rest into the water. By building

          8  even relatively -- the research goes back to the

          9  1950's and again these have shown that a square foot

         10  of muscle can filter something like 2,000 gallons of

         11  water per day. That would something like less than

         12  an acre of muscles would be able to filter the full

         13  65 million gallons of discharge in the 26th ward

         14  where a few acres would be able to filter the entire

         15  output from the 200 million gallons per day from the

         16  Hunts Point system. Catch water on land and the

         17  other side, we could augment the estuaries

         18  filtration capacity and we could take some huge

         19  steps forward. The problem is the models, the pilots

         20  have not been put in place and I believe they could

         21  be built cost effectively between now and really the

         22  beginning of next year, shortly into the spring.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Paul.

         24  What I'm going to do is I have a comment on your

         25  testimony or question, but I'll have the other panel
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          2  and then I will come back.

          3                 MR. SUPER: Thank you for inviting me

          4  to testify. I'm Reed Super, Senior Clinical Staff

          5  Attorney at Columbia's Law School Environmental Law

          6  Clinic.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me make sure

          8  I got you. Did you submit a statement?

          9                 MR. SUPER: I did.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I got it, I got

         11  it.

         12                 MR. SUPER: I'll be very brief.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, by the way,

         14  we're not closing down. I'm just getting a little

         15  hot under the lights. So I asked them to tone some

         16  of the lights down a little bit. Or at least the

         17  ones that are pointing on me anyway. You guys may

         18  still be warm, but they want to cool me off I guess

         19  a little bit. That's why the lights are being

         20  dimmed, I'm just getting a hot up here. Yes, Reed,

         21  sorry.

         22                 MR. SUPER: That's quite all right.

         23  The main issue I want to focus on is something the

         24  Committee may not be aware of, but that may call

         25  into question the very foundation of what DEP
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          2  presented earlier today. Which is that DEP may not

          3  be testing our waters, the water quality, frequently

          4  enough or appropriately to determine compliance with

          5  fecal coliform standards or to properly assess the

          6  impacts of CSO's.

          7                 DEP's most recent water quality

          8  survey, dated 2004, reports a steady increase in

          9  fecal coliform levels in the Inner Harbor over the

         10  last five years. A reversal of the trend of the last

         11  three decades that puts those waters now back at the

         12  coliform levels of the early- to- mid 1990's. It is

         13  right in DEP's report on its website, but they

         14  didn't mention it earlier today. But because DEP

         15  samples water quality far less frequently than State

         16  regulations dedicate, the true coliform levels are

         17  unknown. They could be either higher or lower than

         18  their limited data indicates.

         19                 State water quality regulations

         20  require --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Hold on, Reed. I

         22  want to kind of follow along. This is interesting

         23  stuff. You just said that they -- so you are saying

         24  that DEP samples water quality less frequently than

         25  State regulations dictate. Again, I'll sort of break
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          2  my own rule to saving questions for the end. So the

          3  statement is that DEP is doing something that is

          4  non- compliant with what the State says they have to

          5  do. What does the State have to say about that?

          6                 MR. SUPER: Let me first quote what

          7  DEP itself said in 1997. They said since their

          8  Harbor survey program typically test each site only

          9  two to four times per month, rather than the five

         10  times in State regulations, a true determination of

         11  compliance is not possible. What this regulation

         12  says, it is a mandate from DEC to DEP to sample five

         13  times a month, but the way that you determine

         14  compliance, the water quality standard itself,

         15  rather than just saying what the level of fecal

         16  coliform should be, it says also how you arrive at

         17  that sample and it says a minimum of five samples

         18  per month.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. Okay,

         20  continue. Also, before I go forward, who is here

         21  from the Mayor's Office or DEP or whatever? Okay,

         22  fine. Everybody is here. Great. I just want to make

         23  sure who is here. Oh, so the whole  brain trust is

         24  still here. Oh, Jim, great. I just wanted to see who

         25  was still here.
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          2                 MR. SUPER: Worst yet in recent years,

          3  DEP sampling frequency has declined even further

          4  from the two to four times per month that they

          5  talked about in '97, the Department now takes an

          6  average of only 15 to 18 samples per year (less than

          7  twice per month at each sampling point). That's from

          8  their most recent reports. The City's Health

          9  Department also samples for Enterococci, which is

         10  another indicator of pathogens like fecal coliform,

         11  but only at the City- owned beaches, weekly or bi-

         12  weekly and only in the summer. That effort also

         13  falls short of the five per month standard, but it

         14  also omits all the non- beach waters around the five

         15  boroughs that are increasingly popular for water

         16  based recreation all year around.

         17                 I raised this issue in our comments

         18  in 2004 on the Consent Order, but DEC who was the

         19  body taking those comments, failed to respond. I

         20  raised it again at the open water CAC meetings and

         21  DEP promised a technical work group meeting in which

         22  their consultant, Hydroqual would explain the

         23  modeling they believe supports the accuracy of their

         24  results despite the limited sampling. But that

         25  meeting hasn't even been scheduled yet. We asked for
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          2  their model's calibration report so our technical

          3  experts could peer review it, but they said it the

          4  calibration report have not yet been written.

          5                 Furthermore, even if DEP could

          6  determine compliance in the ambient waters, such

          7  data may not properly access the effects of CSO's

          8  for which the timing and location, not just the

          9  frequency, of sampling is critical. CSO effects are

         10  very specific, both temporally, they occur during

         11  wet weather, and graphically, pollutants discharge

         12  from shoreline outfalls.

         13                 In other words, monitoring performed

         14  away from the shore and according to a schedule not

         15  timed to precipitation events will distort results.

         16  This is particularly important because recreational

         17  uses like swimming, fishing and boating often occur

         18  near the shoreline, and thus closer to the CSO

         19  outfalls, where higher pollutant levels would be

         20  expected. In its most report, DEP says it is

         21   "investigating possible links to weather as the

         22  trigger for the variability of water quality

         23  throughout New York Harbor."

         24                 It seems quite obvious to me that we

         25  need to sample in both wet and dry conditions, both
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          2  at and away from the CSO outfalls, frequently enough

          3  to determine the proximate effect of CSO's. And

          4  understanding the extent of impact is necessary both

          5  in the short term to alert citizens to the potential

          6  hazard and in the long term, to fix the problem.

          7  However, the Department's efforts and its

          8  transparency seem to be lacking in that regard.

          9                 In closing, I would ask this

         10  Committee to oversee DEP's monitoring of water

         11  quality in general and of CSO's in particular. The

         12  technical meeting promised to the CAC should be held

         13  forthwith and if, following that meeting, additional

         14  monitoring is needed, we would appreciate the

         15  Committee's assistance in making that happen. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         18  Basil.

         19                 MR. SEGGOS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20  Thank you members of the City Council. My name is

         21  Basil Seggos. I'm Chief Investigator of Riverkeeper.

         22  I'm actually speaking on behalf of Riverkeeper,

         23  Baykeeper and Soundkeeper who are the three keeper

         24  organizations that are minding New York Harbor and

         25  the waters of New York and New Jersey and
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          2  Connecticut. Our history goes way back with the CSO

          3  issue. We have doing this for almost 20 years now

          4  with New York City. I have to say, I would like to

          5  believe that the City is perhaps changing its tune

          6  on a commitment to sustainability. But I have to say

          7  that based on our track record with them over the

          8  last 20 years, I am not saying that will be produced

          9  over the next several months preceding this June

         10  deadline in 2007, will in the long term somehow be

         11  incorporated back into the long- term control plan.

         12                 The aversion to sustainability I

         13  think was just put on display earlier. We are in

         14  support, of course, of many of the end- of- pipe

         15  technologies, but I think that the DEP didn't have

         16  good answers for you on sustainability because it

         17  has not been properly researched and analyzed to

         18  this point. Some studies have actually been directly

         19  cancelled midstream. A great deal of money has been

         20  put into these end- of- pipe technologies at the

         21  expense of sustainability. For us to trust the DEP

         22  at this point that they will eventually incorporate

         23  these technologies, somehow after the fact, I think

         24  stretches our willingness at this point to allow

         25  this to happen.
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          2                 We have often resorted to litigation,

          3  often the threat of litigation to push things

          4  forward for the City. I think what is needed and I'm

          5  glad that the City Council is taking this seriously

          6  is some really stringent follow- up from your

          7  Committee to stay on top of what the DEP proposals

          8  to you or reports to you on their sustainability and

          9  sort of source control measures. We have begin to

         10  look into sustainability elsewhere around the

         11  country and some technologies that are available. It

         12  is actually quite surprising, I think. What limited

         13  investments in urban sustainability in BMP's how

         14  that can dramatically and at great cost efficiencies

         15  reduce the amount of stormwater that gets into the

         16  system in the first place.

         17                 Portland, Oregon, a great system in

         18  place for down spout disconnects where a minor

         19  several million dollar investment encouraging

         20  homeowners to remove down spouts is achieving

         21  billions of gallons of reduction from the overall

         22  system. That's the kind of thing that we would like

         23  the City, New York City, to look into aggressively.

         24  Not to promise us today, but to go out there

         25  actually in contract with a number of organizations
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          2  and consultants that can begin producing, not just

          3  modeling, but actual data. And this is only going to

          4  come through the commitment to put in place measures

          5  that Paul has been working on all his life and

          6  Franco has been working on as well.

          7                 If we are worried about cost here and

          8  I'm glad it was brought up earlier and the City I

          9  think answered it correctly, the benefits of more

         10  sustainable approach to New York City, CSO problems,

         11  I think far outweigh any incidental cost of putting

         12  these measures in place. You are talking about

         13  increasing property values where you are planting

         14  street trees. You are talking about decreasing

         15  temperature Citywide if a broad and aggressive

         16  campaign of greening is put in place. You are

         17  talking about reducing cooling cost. Black outs that

         18  occur, this summer for instance in Queens, perhaps

         19  if a more green approach had been adopted years

         20  back, it would have reduced the amount of energy put

         21  into our air conditioners and therefore, reduced a

         22  similar spike in energy needs.

         23                 This is certainly I think in the long

         24  term, what we need to do is look at what do we want

         25  the City to look like in 30 years. What do we want
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          2  the City to look like in 50 years? It can't look

          3  like it does today because today with an inch of

          4  rain, we're talking about something like 613 million

          5  gallons of sewage and stormwater getting into the

          6  Harbor. And that's every single time it rains an

          7  inch, that's what happens. That's not a sustainable

          8  City. We are talking about the City getting warmer

          9  over time. We're talking about global warming having

         10  an impact on our energy use.

         11                 There has to be a dramatic change in

         12  the way the City approaches these policies. And I am

         13  glad for sure that the Mayor has initiated the

         14  sustainability project that it is. In the context of

         15  a long- term control plans, I hope it is not too

         16  little too late because we all I think are

         17  interested in seeing this happen a lot sooner.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you, Basil.

         20                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman

         21  for the opportunity and members of the Committee. My

         22  name is Larry Levine. I'm with Natural Resources

         23  Defense Council.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pleasure to have

         25  you.
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          2                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you. I'll also try

          3  to brief. I'm not going to recap everything that's

          4  in the written submission.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: God bless you.

          6                 MR. LEVINE: I want to try to touch on

          7  what I think are some important points about some of

          8  the same themes that have been discussed already

          9  this afternoon. First, in regard to the issue of

         10  public participation through the citizens advisory

         11  committees and stakeholder teams that have been set

         12  up by the Department of Environmental Protection in

         13  different parts of the City, I think we have two

         14  concerns with the way that effort has unfolded so

         15  far.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The CAC's?

         17                 MR. LEVINE: The CAC's.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         19                 MR. LEVINE: The public participation

         20  efforts. One is that it has been quite uneven when

         21  you look at different parts of the City and the

         22  degree of opportunity for participation has been

         23  afforded to residents of different areas living near

         24  different water bodies all of which are affected by

         25  CSO's and I'll give just as an example. Because RDC
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          2  has been serving as member of two different advisory

          3  committees. The open water is one that was mentioned

          4  in the agency's testimony and also the one for

          5  Jamaica Bay. I actually had the opportunity last

          6  month to attend one meeting of each of those that

          7  happened on back to back days. And the difference

          8  between them was very stark.

          9                 There is in fact quite a good bit of

         10  substantive discussion that goes on at the open

         11  waters CAC. There are in fact work group meetings

         12  some of which have happened, some of which have been

         13  promised, but have not yet happened. But there has

         14  been productive discussion going on and we're

         15  hopeful that it will continue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: At the open

         17  water ones?

         18                 MR. LEVINE: At the open water one.

         19  Although, I think Reed Super --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because Reed

         21  made a point about that.

         22                 MR. LEVINE: That's right. And I think

         23  he very brightly noted that there are some promises

         24  yet to be fulfilled on that. I'm going to come back

         25  to that also.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 MR. LEVINE: When you compare that,

          4  warts and all, has been productive in many respects

          5  to the Jamaica Bay meeting that I was at for

          6  example. That's a committee that has been set up and

          7  meet for the first time over the summer, meet the

          8  second time last month and won't meet again until

          9  January and then we'll have one more meeting, I

         10  believe tentatively scheduled for something like

         11  March or April.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But for the

         13  Jamaica Bay, this is not the Jamaica Bay Task Force?

         14                 MR. LEVINE: That's right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right?

         16                 MR. LEVINE: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's the CAC.

         18                 MR. LEVINE: It's the CAC for the

         19  long- term control plan development. There you have

         20  somebody looking at how often it is meeting is one

         21  way to look at, but when you look at what's actually

         22  discussed in these meetings, there is really much

         23  less information being provided to the members of

         24  the community that show up and attend these meetings

         25  out in the Jamaica Bay group, for example, as
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          2  compared to the open water group that has been

          3  meeting in Manhattan.

          4                 I think that is really unfortunate

          5  because when DEP testifies when members of the

          6  community haven't been interested in certain issues

          7  and so we haven't discussed them. Well, how are

          8  members of the community going to know enough to

          9  assert their interest in an issue unless they are

         10  told about them in the first instance. Just the

         11  degree of information and analysis that has been

         12  shared in a timely fashion with the members of the

         13  other CAC's has really varied widely.

         14                 I think for the open waters CAC, we

         15  have gotten somewhat more information because there

         16  has been a group of people on that committee who

         17  have been working on this issue at a detailed

         18  technical level for a long period of time and have

         19  known enough to ask the right questions. And it is

         20  incumbent upon DEP to be providing that same quality

         21  of information to everyone throughout the City who

         22  wants to be engaged in this process regardless

         23  whether or not they are starting from a base of

         24  knowledge where they know all the right questions

         25  are to ask in the first place. That's one concern
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          2  that we have. Just the degree of information

          3  analysis that's being shared and therefore the

          4  opportunity for real feedback to come back in from

          5  these committees in different parts of the City.

          6                 The other concern is even looking at

          7  the open water CAC. It is critical if there are

          8  going to be meaningful public participation and a

          9  real opportunity for some kind consensus decision

         10  making on this as the agency has testified that they

         11  are interested in pursuing and rightfully so. There

         12  needs to be provision of the work in progress of the

         13  agency to the members of the CAC in time for them to

         14  review it, discuss it, comment on it and give

         15  feedback such that the agency can take that feedback

         16  and incorporate it or respond to it and deal with it

         17  in some way in a final product that ultimately has

         18  submitted to the State in June 2007.

         19                 At open waters CAC, we have been

         20  pushing for a commitment of the agency to present

         21  draft deliverables of pieces of the long- term

         22  control plan such as the analysis of BMP's or a cost

         23  analysis or other pieces that are components of this

         24  June 2007 report to share those with the members of

         25  the CAC with enough time prior to June 2007 so that
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          2  we can actually have a meaningful discussion and

          3  meaningful input on that. So far we haven't seen

          4  that commitment and we haven't yet achieved the

          5  confidence that we think is necessary that there

          6  will be that meaningful opportunity to participate

          7  in the decision making process.

          8                 Second, in terms of the source

          9  control issue. I think that the testimony as you

         10  noted was both frank and revealing about the status

         11  of DEP's current efforts in that regard in that it

         12  does not appear that they are going to have a

         13  thorough analysis on the issue by June 2007. And if

         14  that's the case, there needs to be a mechanism in

         15  place to ensure that that issue doesn't fall by the

         16  wayside once a report has handed in from the City to

         17  the State in June and the BMP issue drops off the

         18  table. The source control issue drops off the table

         19  because there is no longer pressure of a report due

         20  at a certain date to the State to comply with the

         21  CSO Consent Order and with the federal Clean Water

         22  Act.

         23                 I think like Basil Seggos in his

         24  testimony, I think we likewise don't have yet a

         25  level of confidence that that's going to get folded
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          2  back in some unspecified way into the long- term

          3  control plan process if it is not done by June 2007.

          4  If it can't be done by them, then we need a specific

          5  process that will ensure that it is done following

          6  that date, but in a timely way that does feedback

          7  into the long- term control process and all of the

          8  enforceable mechanisms that go along with those

          9  long- term control plans.

         10                 One thing that I was surprised

         11  actually that hadn't been discussed which has been

         12  information that has been shared with the open water

         13  CAC is that there is a study, that we understand to

         14  be underway, by a DEP consultant called BioHabitat

         15  (is the name of the consultant firm), which is

         16  suppose to be due out with a report next month

         17  analyzing in some detail the different source

         18  control methods that they could be applied in the

         19  City and different parts of the City and screening

         20  those incorporating some of the field work that have

         21  been discussed. And that there is a report that has

         22  been promised to be shared with the CAC in November.

         23  We would certainly hope that report also gets shared

         24  with the City Council and that can be a springboard

         25  for further analysis and refinement to include that
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          2  within the June 2007 long- term control plan. I'm

          3  sorry, draft long- term control plan that is.

          4                 And that's actually on the side, a

          5  comment, these reports in June 2007 are meant to be

          6  draft long- term control plans. They refer to in the

          7  Consent Order as this term called a

          8  Waterbody/Watershed Facility Plan report. But they

          9  actually have been described to be by both the State

         10  and the City is draft long- term control plans. That

         11  means that they have to comport with all the

         12  requirements under the EPA/CSO control policy of

         13  what the elements of a long- term control plan are.

         14  Since part of that is the analysis of an adequate

         15  range of alternatives to control CSO's, everyone who

         16  has been speaking today is absolutely correct that

         17  needs to include within it, the analysis of these

         18  source control issues and that can't be simply

         19  segmented off as a separate planning process.

         20                 Finally, in regard to the water

         21  quality standards issue. I'm sorry. Let me just make

         22  one last comment on the source control. I'll be very

         23  brief.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You said

         25  finally. You said finally.
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          2                 MR. LEVINE: You're right. I wanted to

          3  make a plug for our NRDC report that I neglected to

          4  include in my written comments which is called

          5  Rooftops to Rivers and it is available on our

          6  website and includes case studies on source control

          7  from other cities. In regard to water quality

          8  standards, the issue I think was raised of whether

          9  request from the City, potential requests from the

         10  City to the State to modify a week in the water

         11  quality standards may be made in June 2007 or at

         12  some other point down the road and what needs to

         13  happen before a decision point is reached on that.

         14                 The State has said in the context of

         15  these CAC meetings, a state representative has

         16  participated in the open water's committee, that

         17  post- implementation monitoring would be required to

         18  see what the benefits and what the effect has been

         19  of the alternatives that are initially selected by

         20  the City once they are implemented; how much have we

         21  achieved; how much water quality improvement have we

         22  seen; how much further do we have to go with the

         23  real data. That's a required step before you get to

         24  the point of making a statement as bold as to say,

         25  we simply can't meet water quality standards.
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          2                 It is very important that be the case

          3  for all of the waters around the City and not that

          4  we select some out and say well, for some we know

          5  already we're not going to get there and for others

          6  we'll wait and see. We really do need to push the

          7  envelope on all these issues.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: He said that.

          9  Jim said that as part of his testimony that we have

         10  to try to things out first before --

         11                 MR. LEVINE: And we want to make sure

         12  that that's the case for all the waters around the

         13  City and that there are not some that are treated

         14  differently than others in that regard.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         16                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you for your time

         17  and for the opportunity.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Thank you.

         19  Who's next? Do you have a statement, sir?

         20                 MR. MONTALTO: I do. I submitted it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, okay. I have

         22  it, thank you. Please proceed. State your name for

         23  the record and proceed.

         24                 MR. MONTALTO: Sure. My name is Franco

         25  Montalto. I am a research fellow at Columbia
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          2  University at the Earth Institute where I work on

          3  water issues. I'm also President of Edesign Dynamics

          4  which is an environmental firm that was previously

          5  under contract with DEP to look at source control

          6  measures. I'll talk about a little bit more about

          7  that later. But also in the name of brevity, I think

          8  I'm going to paraphrase some of my written statement

          9  and focus on two studies that I have been involved

         10  in that looks specifically at source control

         11  technologies in New York City as a means of

         12  controlling CSO's and then conclude with a few

         13  recommendations of my own.

         14                 I just want to make a few as I

         15  paraphrase the initial part of my written statement,

         16  this 1999 study that was referenced, if it is the

         17  cop at all study about infiltration, I have a copy

         18  of it which I would be happy to provide to the

         19  Council if that's of interest.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         21                 MR. MONTALTO: I also wanted to

         22  reference another study 2002 EPA study which is

         23  called the Cost of Urban Stormwater Control. It is

         24  cited in my written statement and there is some

         25  facts in there about EPA's opinion on the cost of
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          2  infiltration and source control measures compared to

          3  centralized approaches. In particular, I just like

          4  to call your attention to a table in there that

          5  mentions that infiltration potentially cost one

          6  quarter on a gallon per gallon basis of a controlled

          7  centralized facility. Also, I just wanted to

          8  emphasize one other thing which centralized approach

          9  is to control stormwater are fixed entities. They

         10  are fixed infrastructure and as such, once

         11  constructed, these facilities cannot easily be

         12  respond to new development, to population growth or

         13  to land use changes in the service area. I think

         14  that's an important thing to keep in mind given that

         15  New York City is always in flux.

         16                 Basil mentioned Portland. Portland

         17  has taken a hybrid approach to dealing with CSO's.

         18  Hybrid meaning involving centralized end- of- pipe

         19  infrastructure and decentralized infrastructure. In

         20  their long- term control plan, they assumed that 13

         21  percent of the annual CSO load would be reduced

         22  using down spout disconnects. In actuality, to date

         23  they have installed 47,000 down spout disconnections

         24  and reduced CSO volumes merely by that of one

         25  billion gallons per year. That's an example for us,
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          2  I think.

          3                 Now I just want to kind of highlight

          4  some of these two studies that I worked on. The

          5  first study which was completed in 2004, we compared

          6  the cost effectiveness of this distributed source

          7  control approach to reducing CSO's to a centralized

          8  approach focusing on OH- 007 which is the CSO that

          9  discharges into the Gowanus Canal the most each

         10  year. We submitted the results of a study to a

         11  journal. It is currently in process of being

         12  reviewed. But to just summarize the findings, we

         13  found that -- well the study considered various

         14  levels of adoption of green roofs, porous pavements

         15  and green street features into the area served by

         16  OH- 007 which is most of Park Slope and Gowanus and

         17  assumed that DEP, for example, would cover the

         18  difference in construction cost of the green

         19  approach, the source reduction approach, and the

         20  standard alternatives.

         21                 For example, a green roof, we assumed

         22  that the difference between the cost of a regular

         23  roof and a cost of a green roof would be supplied by

         24  DEP and looked at the cost effectiveness of that

         25  expenditure compared to the cost of a centralized
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          2  facility. This public private cost- sharing protocol

          3  is standard in countries like Germany where

          4  government agencies are actively promoting

          5  distributed environmental technologies.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I know. We just

          7  had the German army here to reinforce the point.

          8  They left. I wouldn't say that in front of them.

          9                 MR. MONTALTO: We varied assumptions

         10  in the model, but at best a large reduction in CSO's

         11  could be achieved at any level of public investment

         12  vis- a- vis the distributed approach. And at worst,

         13  the distributed measures could significantly reduce

         14  the scale of CSO tank that would be required to

         15  achieve a particular CSO reduction goal. The study

         16  is much more elaborate than I can go into right

         17  here, but if there is interest, I could give more

         18  details on that.

         19                 The results of these studies were

         20  presented to DEP and as I mentioned in the

         21  introduction, we were awarded a contract to do a

         22  much more detailed analysis of those low- impact

         23  development approaches in the Allshead Sewer Shed

         24  (phonetic) which is a big part of Brooklyn

         25  obviously. Before we could get very far, the
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          2  contract was terminated. So the findings of that are

          3  not available. But one component of that study was a

          4  survey of property owner interest acceptance and

          5  willingness to pay for source reduction strategies

          6  because typically 40 to 60 percent of the surface of

          7  an urban watershed is owned by private property

          8  owners. So there needs to be some way of working

          9  with private owners.

         10                 We decided to look at this question

         11  through a survey funded by Columbia University. And

         12  it involved conducting a survey through the opinion

         13  of property owners in the OH- 007 service area via a

         14  mail- in survey. We sent the survey to a random

         15  sampling of 300 owners of the most common building

         16  type found in that sewer shed which is multi- family

         17  buildings; received a 15 percent response rate.

         18  Because 71 percent of the respondents agreed that

         19  their views as expressed in this survey should be

         20  important to policy makers, I wanted to highlight

         21  some of the preliminary findings now.

         22                 Ninety- one percent of the

         23  respondents strongly agreed to the statement that

         24  New York City harbor water quality, clean

         25  waterfronts, and clean beaches are important. Sixty-

                                                            129

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  one percent disagreed that protecting environment is

          3  the government's responsibility alone; while 95

          4  percent agreed that protecting the environment is

          5  primarily the government's responsibility, but that

          6  residents and businesses need to play a supporting

          7  role. Again, source control involves residents and

          8  businesses participating in the process. That's a

          9  significant finding.

         10                 Roughly half of 48 percent of the

         11  respondents said they would support private property

         12  owners helping to pay to control sewer overflows and

         13  that's versus 36 percent opposing and 17 percent

         14  with no opinion. While 52 percent of the respondents

         15  agreed that the use of waterfront space to build CSO

         16  storage tanks is understandable and acceptable, 49

         17  percent were concerned that replacing sewer pipes or

         18  building underground storage tanks will not reduce

         19  CSO's.

         20                 Eighty- six percent of the

         21  respondents would support a program to reduce the

         22  amount of rainwater that enters the sewer system

         23  from private property. Forty- three percent would

         24  strongly support such a program. Seventy- seven

         25  percent said they would support a program to promote
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          2  widespread adoption of efforts to reduce the amount

          3  of rainwater entering the sewer system from private

          4  property in their own watershed. Sixty- nine percent

          5  agreed to the statement that reducing the amount of

          6  rainwater that gets into the sewer system is a more

          7  environmentally sustainable way of reducing sewer

          8  overflows than building large storage tanks or

          9  increasing the size of sewer pipes.

         10                 And finally, close to half or 45

         11  percent of the respondents disagreed with the claim

         12  that it would be difficult to reduce the amount of

         13  runoff entering the sewer system from their

         14  property. That's an allegation that is often brought

         15  to the table when talking about source controls in

         16  this context. For example, 81 percent said that

         17  downspouts were visible from the outside of their

         18  buildings; 74 percent said they could use harvested

         19  rainwater in their gardens or for washing down

         20  outdoor furniture and surfaces; 74 percent said they

         21  would actually be willing to pay some percentage

         22  more than the cost of a standard roof for a green

         23  roof. Sixty- three percent said they would be

         24  willing to pay more than the cost of a regular

         25  pavement for porous pavement. So you get the

                                                            131

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  picture. There seems to be a distributed source

          3  control approach needs to work with property owners.

          4  Property owners from this survey seem to be not only

          5  amenable, but actually supportive of their

          6  participation.

          7                 I just want to jump quickly to what

          8  my recommendations are --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could

         10  summarize, please.

         11                 MR. MONTALTO: Sure. If distributed

         12  runoff capture measures stand any chance of being

         13  included in more than simply a token way, the DEP

         14  would need to do the following. Shift the

         15  hydrologic/hydraulic modeling approach it currently

         16  is taking towards one that can be appropriately used

         17  to simulate the reduction in CSO's that could be

         18  achieved by the source control strategies. Note that

         19  the existing InfoWorks model that is used by DEP

         20  cannot be easily used to simulate source control

         21  measures because of certain technicalities of the

         22  model which I could tell you more about it if you

         23  are interested.

         24                 The results of this updated modeling

         25  approach could be used to establish distributed
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          2  runoff reduction goals for each CSO shed, based on a

          3  cost- effectiveness study comparing centralized,

          4  distributed and hybrid approaches. Develop a

          5  strategy then for encouraging adoption of

          6  distributed runoff reduction strategies so as to

          7  meet the goals established for each watershed and

          8  this should be coordinated with other agencies and

          9  then at that point develop plans for centralized

         10  facility where it is determined that the distributed

         11  measures can have limited impact.

         12                 I also just want to final note

         13  emphasize what Reed Super mentioned earlier which is

         14  that the calibration and validation report of the

         15  InfoWorks model has either not been produced or not

         16  been made public. The public cannot have confidence

         17  in the results of a modeling effort without the

         18  chance to scrutinize the calibration report.

         19  Nonetheless, this model is being used to discuss the

         20  merits of various CSO reduction strategies and also

         21  being used to discuss the impacts of major

         22  infrastructure, major development projects in the

         23  City notably for example, Atlantic Yards on CSO's.

         24  This practice should be stopped immediately until

         25  DEP produces the calibration/validation report and
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          2  allows an external panel to review it. Thank you and

          3  I apologize for going too long.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Thank you.

          5  I made some notes here. Let me get to Paul. Have you

          6  given a detailed plan to DEP about how some of your

          7  strategies that you envision and some of that have

          8  already been used by the Parks Department can be of

          9  help? Have you given this to DEP?

         10                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: I have.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. You have

         12  got to turn your mic on.

         13                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: I have, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Did you get a

         15  formal response or what?

         16                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: There is actually two

         17  plans. One was one developed with the Serrano

         18  Investment (phonetic) in the Bronx River where we

         19  put together a plan for a specific street along the

         20  Bronx River and that actually ran into trouble some

         21  years back under kind of a different framework long-

         22  term control; not long- term control, but using

         23  standards. But now DEP is looking at an approach for

         24  Jamaica Bay watershed using these technologies.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So you did get a
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          2  response?

          3                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Well, the response

          4  some years back with using standard, I don't know if

          5  it was actually a response, but they kind of stop

          6  investigating actually putting in a facility on

          7  Lafayette Avenue in the Bronx.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But you

          9  say there are using something like that with Jamaica

         10  Bay?

         11                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Yes. That's one

         12  street, but this is a much more distributed kind of

         13  approach they were looking at the kind of Parks

         14  Department, green streets as well as looking at

         15  stormwater capture under parking lots and green

         16  roofs and the whole set of systems which probably

         17  needs to be looked at all together, an integrated

         18  approach in different soil types and different

         19  substrates and all.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you want a

         21  more formal response from DEP on your proposal? I

         22  can get that for you.

         23                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: I believe I will get

         24  one. I mean, I certainly would appreciate your

         25  looking into it. But I think they are actually
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          2  involved right now in taking a look to see what the

          3  next steps are.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Fine. If I

          5  can be of help, let me know. DEP is already on

          6  notice that they have to give me a report on all of

          7  their efforts to source control. Jim heard what we

          8  are saying here. Let me know if you need a more

          9  formalized response to that and I'm also directing

         10  staff when they go with a report from DEP to look at

         11  it in the context of some of the ideas that are

         12  being brought before us on this panel.

         13                 Reed, where are you? Okay. I circled

         14  the part of your statement about DEP promising a

         15  technical work group meeting in which Hydroqual

         16  would explain the modeling and that the meeting

         17  hasn't been scheduled yet and also the models

         18  calibration report. But it says it hasn't been

         19  written and so I'm formerly requesting DEP to

         20  schedule that meeting and to provide the calibration

         21  report and if the calibration report isn't ready

         22  yet, then it should agree to give it when it is

         23  ready. If for some reason they can't give it, for

         24  whatever reason, whatever, legal reason or who

         25  knows, they should inform me that they can't do that
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          2  and this is the reason why they can't. Although, I

          3  don't know why they wouldn't be able too. We'll try

          4  to make that happen for you, Reed.

          5                 MR. SUPER: Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, you bet.

          7  I'm just talking to staff here. With regard to the

          8  monitoring and the sampling and all of that, we've

          9  already asked DEP. Where did Jim go? Oh, fine, okay.

         10  We've already asked DEP for a report on the source

         11  control. It doesn't mean we can't ask for whatever

         12  else we want. We are going to talk about other

         13  things that we want maybe ask them to respond to the

         14  sampling. It seems like that would be a candidate or

         15  type of thing that we would ask them to provide some

         16  information on.

         17                 MR. SUPER: That would be great. Thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: As matter of

         20  fact, why don't I just publicly say that I'm

         21  directing staff to do that as part of our follow- up

         22  to the hearing. That's one of the things that we ask

         23  DEP from. You heard me say that. Make sure she does

         24  it. Okay.

         25                 MR. SUPER: I'll follow up.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, very good.

          3  Also, this BioHabitat report, oh, this is Mr. Levine

          4  brought this up.

          5                 MR. LEVINE: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Talk to Counsel

          7  after the hearing and let's figure out what that is

          8  and ask DEP what that is. Talk to John afterwards

          9  and we'll include that.

         10                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Also talk to her

         12  about your issue regarding the unevenness of the

         13  open water CAC versus Jamaica Bay and chronicle that

         14  to her and we can ask DEP about that as well.

         15                 MR. LEVINE: I will, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: To Basil and

         17  Franco, I won't go into detail, but certainly both

         18  your statements provided some food for thought that

         19  will further assimilate and use when we reach out to

         20  DEP after this hearing. I greatly appreciate you

         21  being here. We've learned immensely from the

         22  testimony that we've heard from this panel and I

         23  thank you all very much. I appreciate that. Next

         24  panel, just as procedures as this panel. Carter

         25  Craft from the Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance;
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          2  Cathleen Breen from NYPIRG; Hershel Weiss from

          3  Ashokan Water or something; Resa Dimino. Oh, hi,

          4  Resa, long time. She is from the Bronx River

          5  Alliance and Kate Zidar, from Lower East Side

          6  Ecology Center. While you are being sworn in, I'll

          7  just excuse myself for one minute. I'll be right

          8  back and then you can commence with your testimony.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please raise

         10  your right hand. In the testimony that you are about

         11  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         12  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         13                 MS. ZIDAR: I do.

         14                 MS. DIMINO: I do.

         15                 MR. WEISS: I do.

         16                 MS. BREEN: I do.

         17                 MR. CRAFT: I do.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Donna, we

         20  have the statements and stuff?

         21                 MR. CRAFT: Good afternoon. My name is

         22  Carter Craft.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         24                 MR. CRAFT: You're the Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Hang on. I just
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          2  have to get myself organized here. Where is Carter's

          3  statement here? We will take it one at a time.

          4  Carter, you've got some pretty exotic, the whole cap

          5  that you -- you going to weave that into the

          6  testimony, I hope, right.

          7                 MR. CRAFT: There is a lot of

          8  constituencies we need to represent and deserve a

          9  voice.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 MR. CRAFT: Rather than --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I was going to

         13  wear a special hat at this hearing and my staff

         14  talked me out of it and now I feel like I should

         15  have gone for it. I feel like I should have gone for

         16  it.

         17                 MR. CRAFT: I'll see if I can find an

         18  extra cap for you and drop it off in the mail.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. A pleasure

         20  to have you here.

         21                 MR. CRAFT: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: State your name

         23  for the record and commence with your testimony.

         24                 MR. CRAFT: Okay. I'm Carter Craft.

         25  I'm Director of the Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance
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          2  and co- chair of the Open Waters East River Citizens

          3  Advisory Committee for the Long- Term Control Plan.

          4  Rather than reflect on some of the materials which

          5  we've submitted as part of our testimony, I just

          6  want to make four points responding to part of what

          7  we've heard and part of our concerns and interests

          8  in the long- term control plan process as well as a

          9  recommendation of how I think we can and should move

         10  ahead. Four points.

         11                 First is the report from the

         12  Swimmers. And I told our friends, the Swimmers, that

         13  we would put the goggles on at least temporarily and

         14  talk about some of the experiences that summer and

         15  three swims that we've got some feedback on and

         16  actually participated in. One was the Brighten Beach

         17  to Breezy Point swim, organized by the Coney Island

         18  Brighten Beach Open Water Swimmers. And they said

         19  for water quality purposes, this was the best year

         20  they ever had swimming from Brighten Beach to Breezy

         21  Point. They figure something good must be happening

         22  in Rockaway and hopefully in Jamaica Bay as well.

         23                 Governor's Island. This is the second

         24  year a Governor's Island swim has been held and the

         25  second year we've gotten very negative reports about
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          2  water quality in terms of the odor and in terms of

          3  quite frankly, the taste. That's anecdotal. I don't

          4  have information as to whether those were combined

          5  sewer events preceding the swim. But I think it

          6  fairly represents the condition that at the upper

          7  Bay and East River suffer in the fact with the

          8  Gowanus Canal emptying out in relative proximity to

          9  the Governor's Island and the fact that the East

         10  River never really flushes. That's a real

         11  challenging stretch for solving the CSO problem.

         12                 The third swim was a Staten Island to

         13  Brooklyn swim across the Verrazano Narrows. That was

         14  a month ago today. To me, it was very encouraging

         15  that the U.S. Coast Guard, a division of the Federal

         16  Department of Homeland Security actually closed the

         17  shipping channel to allow a swim across the Narrow.

         18  If we can get our federal agencies to be that

         19  proactive in enabling recreational use and direct

         20  contact with the waterways, we should expect at

         21  least as much of our state as well municipal

         22  agencies.

         23                 The second point is that not being a

         24  scientist, I'm a transportation planner by training,

         25  pardon me if I'm over simplifying things. But the
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          2  use and enjoyment of the waterways by people isn't

          3  just an environmental idea, it is a human right.

          4  Codified and represented in the public trust

          5  doctrine, it says the waterfront and the wet sand

          6  area and the use of the water is essentially a

          7  birthright. And goes back to the seventh century

          8  Rome and through the Magna Carta and English common

          9  law and the law of the land today.

         10                 I think when you look at the

         11  sustainability charge and the long- term planning

         12  effort of the City to add another million people,

         13  where are those million people going to play. The

         14  reality is as our community gardens disappeared in

         15  the '90's and in- fill housing and commercial

         16  development and the now decking over railroads over

         17  the City, the opportunities for land side recreation

         18  and play space active passive have almost

         19  disappeared because the price of land is so

         20  incredibly expensive. All the more reason we should

         21  find ways to embrace use of the water, whether for

         22  active passive recreation.

         23                 My third point are just my concerns

         24  about the long- term control planning process as I

         25  see it thus far are twofold. One is that it is not
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          2  holistic and not interagency enough. To hear DEP

          3  talk about the engineering solutions, yes, the tanks

          4  maybe we stuck with them a little too long. Now they

          5  have got throttling mechanisms and other engineering

          6  solutions. To me it is kind of like, DOT saying we

          7  are going to solve traffic by expanding the Long

          8  Island Expressway or the Department of Corrections

          9  saying, we're going to solve the crime problem by

         10  building a bigger jail.

         11                 My feeling is that you can't engineer

         12  yourself out of any of these problems; giant bad

         13  schools, whatever, with a single agency approach.

         14  When you look at the lay of the land right out here,

         15  DEP's their issue or their regulatory preview sort

         16  of starts at the storm drain and then it kind of

         17  goes under ground through the plants and through the

         18  different hardware that releases to the treatment

         19  plants. But we've got buildings who controls these

         20  rooftops. We've got parks that is controlling the

         21  playgrounds and the asphalt. We've got DOT that has

         22  the sidewalks and the parking lots. And we really

         23  need to engage them in solving this process.

         24                 My second concern in the long- term

         25  control plan process is that there is too much
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          2  emphasis on modeling. Not being a scientist, I can

          3  only pass on sort of what I've heard. In other

          4  places, they have found that small scale

          5  demonstrations, the sea street stuff in Seattle and

          6  elsewhere that I think you heard about already have

          7  shown to be more effective in ways than a model may

          8  never have calculated. If we are successful enough

          9  to get our model to calculate the pervious versus

         10  impervious surfaces and the percentages that exist

         11  and all these sewer shed areas, if we can get the

         12  model to incorporate the types of soil that exist in

         13  those porous or pervious areas and then calculate

         14  how much those different soil types can then

         15  absorbed of the problem if we promoted water

         16  infiltration. That model may not be able to

         17  calculate or incorporate the roof structures that

         18  exist in soils and therefore add to the collective

         19  capacity of that soil to retain water. All the more

         20  reason to get projects in the ground.

         21                 My last point is that, yes, we do

         22  need more demonstrations. And whether they are big

         23  or whether they are small, I don't think anybody

         24  would say build $2 billion worth of demonstration

         25  projects totally unmodeled. Of course, we've got $2
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          2  billion worth of CSO tanks either open or in

          3  construction as a result, I think, of the modeling.

          4  But if you look at what other agencies do and they

          5  are considering some sort of action or innovation,

          6  you've got business improvement districts that are

          7  closing Times Square. The crossover, the bow tie of

          8  traffic in Times Square is not going to exist

          9  anymore and you won't be able to drive down Broadway

         10  and cut over to 7th or drive down 7th and cut over

         11  to Broadway. They can test the effect of what it is

         12  to shut traffic through Times Square. Same through

         13  Prospect Park; same through Central Park as these

         14  things are being modeled.

         15                 DEP and the water infrastructure that

         16  we have, you can't exactly build hard infrastructure

         17  turn it on and turn it off necessarily as you see

         18  fit the same way you can control traffic flow. But

         19  that's all the more reason to try some of the

         20  smaller scale interventions. Some of the green

         21  infrastructure, some of the low impact developments.

         22  And our proposal, sort of moving ahead through the

         23  long- term control plan would be to have this

         24  planning process identify five different

         25  demonstrations that could each be proposed and
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          2  designed for five of the boroughs. Come up with 25

          3  different potential BMP's that could be built and

          4  have each of those BMP's sort of target a different

          5  land use whether an industrial site in each borough,

          6  new residential construction in each borough, a

          7  hospital or a school building in each borough,

          8  recreational space in each borough.

          9                 I'll offer both to the Committee and

         10  to DEP that we won't just ask for these new designs

         11  or BMP's to be made to happen, we'll work with them

         12  to help raise the money for the design to happen as

         13  well as to find that local community stakeholder and

         14  stewardship group that I feel is absolutely critical

         15  to monitoring and maintaining and understanding some

         16  of these newer installations that we need to solve

         17  the problem over the next ten, 20, 30, 40 years.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you, Carter.

         21                 MS. BREEN: Good afternoon. My name is

         22  Cathleen Breen. I'm the Watershed Protection

         23  Coordinator for the New York Public Interest

         24  Research Group (NYPIRG). In the interest of time,

         25  I'm not going to read my statement other than to
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          2  just point something out. I do just want to point

          3  out just so much of what my colleagues have already

          4  said with respect to the work that has been done and

          5  the work that could be done. I mentioned to Carter,

          6  the last time we were sitting here discussing CSO's

          7  was also a rainy day and I think that's pretty

          8  telling. I remember the Commissioner coming in with

          9  rain gear and boots on and while that wasn't the

         10  attire for DEP today, I see umbrellas.

         11                 Nevertheless, I think when we are

         12  talking about stormwater, we're not talking about an

         13  issue that is unique to New York and it's not an

         14  issue unique to DEP. This is an issue that is a

         15  nationwide problem. It is the reason why 40 percent

         16  of our nation, according to EPA, streams and rivers

         17  are not fishable or swimmable. It is also an area or

         18  issue that also been worked on a lot. A lot of that

         19  modeling, a lot of work on BMP's. What tool boxes

         20  work and what don't and what works in an urban area.

         21  So, pulling out of some of my testimony, I just want

         22  to touch on one thing having to do with costs.

         23                 The effective use of low impact

         24  designs which is the green technology basically,

         25  BMP. Savings are achieved by eliminating the use of
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          2  detention ponds, reducing pipes, inlet structures,

          3  curbs and gutters, less roadway paving, less grading

          4  and clearing. Where LID techniques are applicable

          5  and depending upon the type of development and site

          6  constraints, stormwater and site development costs

          7  can be reduced by ten to 25 percent compared to

          8  conventional approaches.

          9                 I think that speaks to the issue

         10  earlier about not only the human benefits that we've

         11  all spoken about in terms of the reduction of

         12  stormwater and the curtailment of the CSO's which

         13  will allow our recreational use and our waterways to

         14  be cleaner. But also in terms of the real practical

         15  costs, because they are being used elsewhere,

         16  because a lot of the work is already been done, they

         17  are going down. So I think that there needs to be a

         18  real concerted effort to have a hard look at the

         19  type of BMP's that are applicable for the urban area

         20  of New York City. And I think DEP has done that in

         21  Staten Island and I applaud them for that. And

         22  Jamaica Bay, they are doing that. But they need to

         23  extend that. They need to bring that further into

         24  the rest of the New York City in order to make that

         25  a widespread comprehensive program.
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          2                 The other thing that I want to just

          3  mention about briefly is the public involvement, the

          4  information sharing and the importance of the CAC's

          5  and in general the communication with the public on

          6  these issues. I think that is critical. I think that

          7  community participation and involvement is critical

          8  and I think that has been brought up many times

          9  today. I just want to reiterate that. And also the

         10  oversight that the City Council is doing is another

         11  pivotal part of I think showing that CSO's are

         12  addressed. With that, I thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you

         14  Cathleen.

         15                 MR. WEISS: My name is Hershel Weiss.

         16  I've been sitting in at the CAC representing BOMA,

         17  Building Owners and Managers Association.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

         19  statement, Mr. Weiss?

         20                 MR. WEISS: No, I don't.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fine.

         22                 MR. WEISS: A trade organization

         23  representing --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You are the

         25  Chairman? What was that?
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          2                 MR. WEISS: I'm sitting on the CAC,

          3  LTCP Open Water Committee.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          5                 MR. WEISS: Representing BOMA,

          6  Building Owners and Managers Association.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, fine. I saw

          8  you this morning.

          9                 MR. WEISS: Right. And we represent

         10  almost every large office building in New York City.

         11  I'm speaking representing myself today because they

         12  did not vet these comments at this time. They can

         13  gave me the unenviable task of going to the CAC with

         14  the same probably instructions that the Chair has;

         15  clean up the river, make sure everything is clean

         16  and we don't want to see water rates going up a

         17  penny. That's the feeling that the owners have. They

         18  don't want to see a huge increase in cost.

         19                 I approached the CAC and naively

         20  thought that someone would give me a large bunch of

         21  documents saying this is what we are going to do, go

         22  home, read them, come back, make comments and the

         23  DEP will say yes, no, this is where we are going,

         24  we'll discuss it as a group, we'll get somewhere.

         25  The CAC has been very similar to this room. At the
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          2  end of the day, I have no idea what the DEP is

          3  planning. They say they will tell us next meeting.

          4  But we're now halfway through and I really don't

          5  know if I agree, disagree, because I don't know what

          6  is going on. I think everybody else is --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is the open

          8  water one.

          9                 MR. WEISS: The open water. And we're

         10  suppose to be the one that is informed the most.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. You are at

         12  the marque one.

         13                 MR. WEISS: Right. So I don't know

         14  what we know. I don't know anything. There has been

         15  a lot of discussion. It's been very open. It has

         16  been very pleasant. It has been one of the great

         17  learning experiences in my life, but I don't know

         18  what the City of New York plans on doing and I can't

         19  comment. And what I believe is going to happen is

         20  sometime they are going to tell me when I can only

         21  say, I've got to run back to my parent organization

         22  and you want money and I don't know. Or we are for

         23  it, but I can't even get an approval.

         24                 Definitely there is not going to be

         25  at this late hour, half way through the process any
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          2  constructive thought coming from us back to the

          3  organization. It just seems, I don't know, on an

          4  issue that is 30 years old why we are not being told

          5  exactly not a final draft, but at least a draft as

          6  to where the DEP wants to go. Considering all the

          7  talk of BMP's best management practices would

          8  definitely seem to be the way to go if we are trying

          9  to reduce fees. One of the concerns that should

         10  affect the Chair is that our water rates as you know

         11  very well are made up of water and sewer rates.

         12  There is no stormwater rate. There is no fee for it.

         13  If you are trying to promote owners to think, be

         14  ingenious, come up with ways to reduce stormwater,

         15  well the best way to do it is to charge them for the

         16  thing, break out the sewer fee to include a

         17  stormwater fee and people will hire engineers and

         18  figure out how to save it. Whether it is green

         19  roofs, whether it is elsewhere.

         20                 If you give this thing away which

         21  stormwater does not cost anything to dump in New

         22  York City and just say it is included, the landlords

         23  are going to pay for it, well no one is going to

         24  come up with a way of reducing consumption. And the

         25  worst offender is the City of New York. They don't
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          2  pay for water, stormwaters, anything. Yet, they have

          3  the most property dumping into our sewer system and

          4  I really believe that the Council will come in as

          5  the DEP will probably as part of that best

          6  management practice need a lot of assistance getting

          7  other agencies.

          8                 Commissioners don't like telling

          9  other commissioners what to do. They will need

         10  probably some pressure from this body helping them

         11  get the other agencies in line on these issues. They

         12  are not paying for it. They are not paying for

         13  stormwater. They are getting it free. Highways

         14  doesn't pay for anything. Why would they divert this

         15  water in a reasonable manner that doesn't send it

         16  into the City sewer. Thank you very much for your

         17  time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you for your very thought provoking testimony. I

         20  appreciate that.

         21                 MS. DIMINO: Hi. Good afternoon. Resa

         22  Dimino. I am the Director of Programs and

         23  Development at the Bronx River Alliance. The

         24  Alliance has a partnership of more than 100

         25  organizations, agencies, schools, and businesses all
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          2  dedicated to restoring and providing public access

          3  to the Bronx River. I'm here today because the CSO

          4  problem and the City's failure to comply with the

          5  Clean Water Act has a direct effect on the safe and

          6  healthy use and enjoyment of the Bronx River; not

          7  only by me, but by the thousands of partners,

          8  friends, and constituents of the Bronx River

          9  Alliance. We all appreciate the fact that you are

         10  giving attention to this important issue and that

         11  you have invited our testimony.

         12                 I'm going to give as everyone else

         13  has done in the interest of time, just briefly give

         14  an overall of my written testimony. But before I do

         15  that, I want to respond to a couple of things that

         16  were discussed earlier. One that is really

         17  critically important to us is the discussion about

         18  Westchester county's contribution to the pollution

         19  of the Bronx River. And I would take issue with the

         20  statement made by Commissioner Lawitts that their

         21  commitment to cleaning up the Bronx River is

         22  uncertain. I think the facts state otherwise.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That

         24  Westchester's commitment is uncertain.

         25                 MS. DIMINO: Right, Westchester county
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          2  commitment is uncertain. I think their commitment is

          3  real as evidence by the fact that the county has

          4  convened a watershed coalition which includes all 13

          5  municipalities along the Bronx River as well as

          6  representatives of New York City Parks, DEP, the

          7  Alliance, and other stakeholders in Westchester. And

          8  that watershed coalition is working together on a

          9  county wide stormwater management plan that will

         10  also address other water quality issues.

         11                 In addition, as was mentioned, they

         12  are partnering with the DEP and the Army Corp on an

         13  ecosystem restoration study. And in addition to

         14  that, the State Attorney General has had a rigorous

         15  enforcement effort along the Bronx River which

         16  originally targeted institutions within New York

         17  City, the Bronx Zoo, the Botanical Garden, but has

         18  since won a case against the City of Yonkers

         19  requiring them to eliminate all of the illegal

         20  discharges of sewage into the river. And as recently

         21  as last week announced an agreement with Yonkers

         22  Raceway to disconnect illegal sewer discharges. All

         23  this is to say that the City DEP's argument that the

         24  City can't make a significant impact on vehicle

         25  chloroform contamination in the river because
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          2  Westchester county isn't doing their part is false.

          3  It is a red herring. It is not an excuse for lack of

          4  action on the part of the New York City DEP and it

          5  has been used in that way before. I wanted to

          6  clarify that.

          7                 I also wanted to mention that the DEP

          8  has floated the idea of down grading the water

          9  quality standard for the Bronx River from fishable,

         10  swimmable to a lower categorization. That's a real

         11  concern for us. The first and most critical issue

         12  that we want to raise --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They said they

         14  didn't do that. I asked them.

         15                 MS. DIMINO: They floated the idea

         16  with us. They did a use and standards attainability

         17  analysis which said that because of this problem

         18  with --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But it didn't

         20  happen, right?

         21                 MS. DIMINO: They haven't done it yet.

         22  They are still reserving the right to do it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's like

         24  flirting, but you haven't asked the question yet.

         25                 MS. DIMINO: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're seeing

          3  what's going on there.

          4                 MS. DIMINO: And they are saying

          5  because of the Westchester problem, they may not be

          6  able to clean up. So the only way they can come into

          7  compliance is to change the standard and we just are

          8  wholeheartedly against that. To go to the first

          9  point of my written statement, the key element is

         10  that the long- term control plan has to attain water

         11  quality standards for existing uses. And in the

         12  Bronx River, those existing uses are primary contact

         13  recreation like swimming as well as fish survival

         14  and propagation. More than a thousand people have

         15  joined myself, Councilman Koppell and others in this

         16  room in paddling the Bronx River this season. We

         17  expect that every summer we'll have that many people

         18  out there.

         19                 In addition, every year I see

         20  children and adults swimming in the river coming in

         21  contact with the river within yards of combined

         22  sewer outfalls. This March, we released alewife

         23  herring into the river and they joined the ranks of

         24  the fish species that call the Bronx River home.

         25  We've created reefs for oyster habitat in the Bronx
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          2  River estuary. We have to protect all these human

          3  and animal inhabitants in the river through the

          4  long- term control plan. We are not quite seeing

          5  that yet in what's been floated.

          6                 We've talked a lot so far about low-

          7  impact development and design alternatives. We are

          8  strong supporters of that. We want to see them

          9  really low- impact development in the green design

         10  really integrated into the long- term control plan.

         11  The plan for the Bronx River so far does not include

         12  those in the alternative analysis and we want to see

         13  that not only because it is a more cost- effective

         14  means of improving the water quality, but because it

         15  also has infiltration in particular has a strong

         16  improvement of the ecological health of the river as

         17  well as controlling CSO's and that's very important

         18  to us as well.

         19                 I want to echo what Carter mentioned

         20  about demonstration sites and studying the efficacy

         21  of these kinds of programs. The modeling alone is

         22  not sufficient to prescribe these solutions or any

         23  others. The models have changed so dramatically

         24  between 2004 and 2006. We have no confidence that

         25  the information being spit out by these models is
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          2  really valuable or viable or we should be basing our

          3  actions on them.

          4                 Third, I want to echo what Carter

          5  mentioned about engaging multiple agencies and

          6  finding ways to implement low- impact development in

          7  the Bronx River watershed. For example, there are

          8  huge tracks of land controlled by the New York City

          9  Housing Authority, Fordham University, the Botanical

         10  Gardens, the Zoo, the Parks Department, the Parkways

         11  both controlled by the Parks Department and the New

         12  York City DOT and, of course, the Bronx River

         13  Greenway which we are working to develop. All of

         14  these institutions and agencies have a role in

         15  potentially controlling stormwater and implementing

         16  LID's. And we would love to be a pilot project, a

         17  pilot watershed for that kind of work.

         18                 Again, to echo the stakeholder

         19  involvement, we've had some meetings more frequent

         20  in the last couple of months than we have had in the

         21  past few years which is certainly a step in the

         22  right direction, but we think there needs to be more

         23  rich and real involvement moving forward. And

         24  finally, that public education both in the immediate

         25  term and long- term is critical. Beach closures
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          2  announcement alone do not really educate the public

          3  about the problem of CSO's and the potential impact

          4  of CSO's on public health. I'll leave it at that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, Resa. Kate, right?

          7                 MS. ZIDAR: Yes. I'm Kate Zidar. I

          8  work as a Program Director for the Lower East Side

          9  Ecology Center. And I was just saying to Carter

         10  before we come --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Didn't you

         12  testify at a hearing recently?

         13                 MS. ZIDAR: Probably. I tend too.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         15                 MS. ZIDAR: I was just saying to

         16  Carter that I actually think it is great to be last

         17  in this particular line up because just listening to

         18  the other testimony that I've heard really kind of

         19  proves the last point that I have in my written

         20  testimony that really in New York City, we are

         21  really blessed with a wealth of expertise in our

         22  citizenry here and dedicated professions who are

         23  really committed to contributing to this solution of

         24  long- term CSO control. We've heard from a lot of

         25  those people today.
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          2                 The one concern that I would like to

          3  express about the planning process so far has been

          4  in bringing up BMP's and source control, doing a

          5  cost benefit analysis of just kind of list of

          6  techniques based on input of a water quality model

          7  is really insufficient whenever you have a wealth of

          8  professionals who are actively working in the City

          9  and projects going on at the grassroots level that

         10  could be supported. That could be picked up and

         11  supported to the benefit of all of us.

         12                 We've heard from Paul and Franco.

         13  There is rainwater harvesting going on through a

         14  group called the Water Resources Group in Community

         15  Gardens. I think some people brought up the green

         16  streets that's going on. Things have started

         17  already. And we would love to see DEP really jump on

         18  board with what's been proven to be locally

         19  appropriate and cost- effective and enhance those

         20  and create the pilot projects that we have been

         21  talking about that could then be used to really

         22  analyze the BMP's. That's just kind of one of the

         23  things I wanted to bring up.

         24                 My real job at the Ecology Center is

         25  do an environmental education and I have a
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          2  curriculum and probably the only curriculum in the

          3  City specifically about combined sewer overflow. I

          4  really enjoy my job and I would love to continue

          5  doing it and get more support. I would love to

          6  invite everyone listening on the Council as well to

          7  come to a screening of the video called the Water

          8  Underground that will be happening November 6, at

          9  7:00 p.m. at Solar 1 and the demonstration of our

         10  combined overflow model that I use to communicate.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Solar 1 on the

         12  River?

         13                 MS. ZIDAR: Yes. They have a lovely

         14  CSO there that we use to exemplify what we're

         15  talking about. I communicate this with elementary

         16  school kids, with high school kids. This evening I

         17  will communicate it with a group of graduate

         18  students at Pratt Institute and I speak to the

         19  general public. The issue that just got brought up

         20  and the issue I will kind of close on is this issue

         21  of public notification. This is a real missed

         22  opportunity. Councilman Yassky brought up, what's

         23  mandated? What are you doing beyond mandated? There

         24  are mandated to do public notification. We have

         25  beach closures. Six hundred miles of waterfront,
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          2  about roughly 15 miles of beach. There is whole lot

          3  other waterfront uses that aren't being protected.

          4                 The solutions to this problem aren't

          5  going to happen overnight. So in the interim, the

          6  public needs to know about it. They need to be

          7  protected when they visit the waterfront. Teachers

          8  like myself, need to know that when they bring

          9  children to the waterfront, they know the quality of

         10  water that they are going to interact with. Support

         11  for programs like ours, but also held broadcasted

         12  CSO advisory. Something along the lines of the

         13  weather report. We all understand kind of what the

         14  weather means to bring an umbrella, but if you are

         15  visiting the waterfront, what else can you do. I

         16  have written testimony and I think that's about all

         17  that I have to say. Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Kate.

         19  I'm sorry. I had to look up your name. Actually, as

         20  much as I would like to engage in further colloquy

         21  and comments, the Sergeant of Arms has informed us

         22  that we have an event that is starting here in 15

         23  minutes which means they have to either redo the

         24  whole room. Let me just thank you all for staying so

         25  late, being so patient and really hanging in there
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          2  to make a difference in this hearing. And I'm

          3  grateful for that.

          4                 We will continue to engage you as we

          5  engage the DEP on this issue and all of your

          6  testimony, your written testimony and your verbal

          7  statements will be taken into account when we get

          8  together the staff and myself and have sort of a

          9  follow up to DEP on what we're going to ask them

         10  for.

         11                 As much as I appreciate your coming

         12  here to testify, my staff is always available to you

         13  on this issue. Everyone knows Donna and Don and

         14  Peter Washburn and please use them as great

         15  resources that they are and any concerns that you

         16  have on this or any other issue, make sure you are

         17  constantly in touch with us. And that's how we can

         18  make better water. With that said, I thank everyone

         19  for coming and the Sergeant of Arms will be happy to

         20  know that this hearing is adjourned.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 4:45 p.m.)
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